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H&T Group plc
Overview and Key Performance Indicators

Financial Overview

Gross profit
2013 £49 9m (2012 £62 3m)

Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)
2013 £11 Tm (2012 £21 3m)

Profit before tax
2013 £6 Tm (2012 £17 Om)

Diluted EPS
2013 13 40p (2012 35 52p)

Proposed Dhvidend Per Share
4 8pwn 2013 (2012 11 85p)

Proposed Final Dividend
2 7pn 2013 (2012 8 05p)

Key Performance Indicators:

No. of Pawnbroking Stores
2013 194, 2012 186,2011 160,2010 135,2009 122

Pledge Book
Down 14 5% to £44 1m 1 2013, 2012 £51 6m, 2011 £46 6m, 2010 £39 5m, 2009 £37 9m

Redemption of Annual Lending %
2013 75 5%, 2012 75 6%, 2011 75 3%, 2010 76 0%, 2009 74 9%

This 15 the actual percentage of lending n each year which was redeemed or renewed, the 2013 figure is an esumate '
based on recent trend and early performance

Retail Sales
2013 £24 9m, 2012 £20 1m, 2011 £20 Om, 2010 £19 6m, 2009 £16 4m

Retail Margin
2013 39 8%, 2012 49 0%, 2011 49 2%, 2010 44 9%, 2009 49 5%

Gold Purchase Margin
2013 19 5%, 2012 23 3%, 2011 31 4%, 2010 36 1%, 2009 39 9%
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Operational Highlhights;

Jewellery retail enhanced through new point of sale, pricing policy and stock replenishment
Foreign Exchange rolled out to all stores
Buy Back of high end electronics rolled out to all stores

In store Pay Day Loans and KwikLoan replaced with a new flexible personal loan

Service Performance:
2013 Mystery Shop Results

Round 1 Round2 Round} Round4 Round5 Total
Number of Mystery Shops 190 192 191 193 194 960
Average Score 97 2% 98 4% 93 4% 97 2% 98 0% 96 8%
Stores achieving 100% score 142 144 100 140 142 668

2012 Mystery Shop Results

Round | Round 2 Round 3 Round 4 Round § Round 6 Total

Number of Mystery Shops 161 167 173 175 177 180 1033
Average Score 97 5% 96 1% 97 1% 95 4% 95 5% 95 9% 96 2%
Stores achieving 100% score 99 75 110 91 69 99 543

H&T provides a range of simple and accessible financial products tailored for a customer
base who have limited access to, or are excluded from, the traditional banking and finance
sector
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The Group has responded well to a rapidly changing market through effective cash management, cost control and
alterations to business mix The Group remains the leading pawnbroker in the UK and during 2013 served 1n excess
of 180,000 customers with over £100m 1n pawnbroking loans

Economic and Market Background

The UK pawnbroking mdustry has experienced a difficult past twelve months Reduced volumes of gold in
circulation, a 29% year on year fall in the sterling gold price and the heightened competitive environment have all
contributed to reduce returns on capital Regulatory challenges across the wider alternative credit industry have added
to financial pressures

Retail store expansion has therefore all but ceased for many businesses within the industry, with operators seeking
instead to conserve capital, strengthen balance sheets, dispose of margmnat stores and focus on maximising existing
store contributions Pawnbrokers have re-focussed on generating recurring revenues as opposed to a reliance on gold
purchasing and on maxirmising disposition values via retail operations

Our Group has responded well by reducing net debt and increasing retail sales significantly to counter falling
revenues from scrap disposition With the largest pledge book n the UK providing a stable source of recurring
revenues the Group is well placed to benefit from any potential industry rationahisation or consolidation

Strategy

Our Group offers immediate access to cash from attractive and convenient high street locations, as well as an on-hne
offering We strnive to be the UK’s pawnbroker of choice, meeting customers’ financial needs by offering loans
secured against high quahty jewellery and watches By building close relationships and lending responsibly we aim to
facilitate high redemption rates and high levels of repeat business

The retail of quality jewellery attracts customers, informs them of the collateral we seek for pawnbroking and
generates good margmns on the disposition of forfeited items We will further strengthen our retail of jewellery This
move 1s one of a series of steps we will take to reduce the impact of gold price volatility on our business

Fimancial Performance

The Group dehvered profit before tax of £6 7m m 2013, down from £17 O0m 1n 2012 The 29% decline in the sterling
price of gold accounted for the majority of this fall, significantly impacting the Group's revenues from the sale of
scrap gold

The Group has taken a measured approach to cost reductions during 2013 1n hight of reduced earnings and as a result
the cost base 1n 2013 was lower than 2012 despite a larger footprint  We would expect the costs to be lower again in
2014 as the full year effect of the savings 1s realised

The falling gold price has provided an opportunity in retail as our jewellery has become relatively more affordable
The Group has increased focus on this disposition route n H2 13 and I am pleased to report that Q4 2013 like-for-
like retail sales were up 56% year on year Retail will play an increasingly important part 1n our business model gong
forward with the increased margins 1t affords

The Group experienced a declime of 14 5% 1n the pledge book to £44 |m as at 31 December 2013 (2012 £51 6m)
principally as a result of the competitive environment Pawnbroking 1s core to the business and we have responded to
this dechne by measured expansion in the asset classes we take as secunty, additional staff traiming and expert
support on quahity watches and gemstones together with focussed marketing efforts

As a board we are strategically reviewing other product developments aimed at helping mitigate the effect of gold
price volatility on our business

During the year, S new pawnbroking stores were opened and 3 were acquired resulting in 194 trading units at year
end We anticipate a small number of store closures during the year, reflecting the shifing footfall on the UK’s high
streets, new opportunities will equally arrive to improve our footprint in favourable economic locations

The Group’s plan to improve its balance sheet strength has progressed well during the year and at 31 December 2013
Group net debt was £20 7m (31 Dec 12 £27 6m) Cash management remams a prionty for the Group as we seek to
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establish an approprniate level of headroom both to de-nisk the business and to enable us to take acquisition
opportunities as they arise

Basic earmings per share are 13 44 pence (2012 35 92 pence)

Regulation

The regulation of consumer credit 1s moving from the Office of Fair Trading (“OFT’) to the Financial Conduct
Authority (“FCA’ } n April 2014 The Group 1s well prepared for the transition and we welcome the higher standards
that this change will bring to our sector

Dividend

Subject to shareholder approval, a final dividend of 2 7 pence per ordinary share (2012 8 05 pence) will be paid on 6
June 2014 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 9 May 2014 The shares will be marked ex-
dividend on 7 May 2014 This will bring the full year dividend to 4 8 pence per ordinary share (2012 11 85 pence)

The reduced dividend reflects the lower eamings n the year and the Group s intention 10 mamtain appropnate
earmings cover 1n light of current trading conditions

Prospects

Our sector has witnessed two sigmficantly adverse events in 2013, one the falling gold price, the other the regulatory
and market 1ssues around pay day lending  As a result all of the larger providers have suffered matenial reductions 1n
earmings This pressure on earmings 1s further compounded by the expansion 1n high street provision 1n recent years,
an expansion that reached 1ts peak in 2012, which 1 turn mncreases competiive pressure  The Board’s view is that
the current number of stores in the industry 1s unsustainable and that 2014 will be a year of consolidation and
rauonahsation, indeed we have already seen a number of store closures and would expect to see more

In this new market we believe 1t 1s critical to mantain the high operating standards we have developed over many
years, to drive efficiencies in the business and seek to expand the products and services that have been more recently
mtroduced We believe that we are well positioned in the sector in terms of financial stability and busiess model to
take advantage of the opportunities as and when they arise

Key to achieving these aims 1s the loyalty of our customers, this 1s achieved through the hard work and support of our
staff, whom I thank on behalf of the Board and shareholders

I would also take this opportunity to thank Alex Maby for s work m the last five years in his role as Finance
Director I am pleased to have Steve Fenerty, formerly our Commercial Director, as his successor

U5 st

Peter D McNamara
Chauman
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The business at a glance

Asat 31 December 2013, H&T was the largest pawnbroking business in the UK by size of pledge book

H&T has existed 1n some form since the late 1800’s and over the years has built or acquired some of the oldest and
largest pawnbrokers in the UK Indeed the store in Edinburgh has operated from the same building for over 150 years
serving the same community

On 8 May 2006 H&T floated on the Alternative Investment Market (“*A1M”) providing the group with access to new
sources of finance and allowing the provision of equity based incentivisation to employees Since then H&T has
accelerated its development by adding new products and services and expanding the store network by 125 stores to
194 at 31 December 2013

H&T operates in a fast moving, competitive environment and will continue to succeed by focussing on customer
needs, the development and retention of staff and the ongoing development of existing and new products together
with expansion n locations

Pawnbroking

A pawnbroking loan 1s secured on an 1tem of value with a term of up to six months H&T value the item(s) based on
weight and the precious metal or stones used 1n its manufacture The customer agrees on a loan amount and enters
into a consumer credit agreement The agreement 1s for a period of 6 months and the customer can redeem the goods
at any pomnt dunng this ime providing that they repay the original loan amount plus any interest due At the end of
the contract, they also have the option to extend the loan for a further six months If the customer chooses not to
redeem or renew the loan, H&T then take action to dispose of the goods

Jewellery Retail

H&T offer a umque range of new and second-hand jewellery and watches sourced from our pledge book, purchased
over the counter or purchased from suppliers All H&T’s jewellery 1s professionally cleaned, restored and valued at
the Group’s refurbishment centre n Kent before being re-distributed for sale to stores across the country All
members of the H&T staff are trained to a high standard to assist customers in choosing individual pieces to suit therr
requirements, a skill which of course enables them to make the right loan n the first place

Gold Purchasing

Gold purchasing 15 a simple way for customers to use their unwanted gold to raise some cash The process 1s
straightforward with the store assessing the items, agreeing a price with the customer and purchasing the goods for
cash on the spot Customers can also sell watches and diamonds to H&T which of course sets us apart from other
providers in the market

Personal Loans

Personal Loans are a simple and innovative way for customers to obtam an unsecured loan of up to £1,000 They
offer complete flexibility on the length of loan and regular repayments, depending on the personal circumstances of
each customer Before 1ssuing a loan we establish the customer’s identity, confirm their income and employment and
complete an affordability assessment If approved then the customer enters into a consumer credit joan agreement and
we will collect the repayments on the dates agreed with the customer

Buy Back

Increasingly, a younger generation of customers are seeking the opportunity to raise cash from electronic 1tems such
as phones, tablets, laptops and game consoles To take advantage of this new asset class, H&T has developed its Buy
Back offer Customers can sell their electrontc items to H&T for cash and buy the item back within 31 days H&T
restrict the types of item purchased to current models of the most popular items
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Cheque Cashing

Cheque cashing 1s a service that allows customers to get cash for their cheques 1n a few minutes, rather than banking
the cheque Most cheques are wages cheques, although other types such as personal, lottery, building society and
Giro are considered Customers use H&T to speed up the cheque clearance (some building socteties can take almost
two weeks to clear a cheque) or to avoid banking the cheque into an cverdrawn account Customers are required to
provide proof of identity and address in order to use the service

Prepaid Debit Card

A pre-paid debit card 1s an 1deal way for customers to have the functionality of a Mastercard without the associated
credit, giving them the freedom to shop online, over the phone or in store As there is no loan or credit involved the
application process 18 simple and the acceptance rate 15 100% Customers leave the store with an ATM only card and
the personahised Mastercard arrives in the post shortly after Cash can then be loaded to the card at over 14,000
locations across the UK, including any H&T store or Post Office branch

Western Union

Every year millhions of people worldwide trust Western Union to send money within minutes to farmly, friends or
colleagues 1n other countries Swince H&T launched Western Union in 2012 1t has quickly increased transaction
numbers to over 10,000 per month and introduced a new customer base to H&T

Foretgn Exchange

H&T offer a foreign exchange service at highly competitive rates and with no commission charges, further
establishing one of our core strengths of offering great vatue to the customer Not only does offering this additional
service make currency exchange easier for our custemers, but we’re also broadening our appeal to a new audience
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Pawnbroking 1s quite simply a loan secured on an item of value Traditionally pawnbrokers would accept almost
anything of value n order to secure the loan The H&T pawnbroking offer 1s mainly based on jewellery as 1t 13
compact, high worth and can be valued and 1f necessary resold relatively easily

How does it work?

The customer brings in the tem(s) of value to the store and 1s asked to give an mdication of how much they want to
borrow This 1s done n order to establish how realistic the customer’s expectation 1s, as the high margins charged by
the high street jewellers can give an inflated perception of the value of the goods The store staff then use a
combination of their expertise and traiming, together with the pomnt of sale system to determine if there 15 adequate
security for the loan Assuming that there 15, the customer and H&T then enter into a credit agreement regulated by
the Consumer Credit Act This is a contract for 6 months and carries interest of 2 0% to 9 99% per month The rate
charged 1s dependent on local competition and the size of the loan

During the contract the customer can

’ Redeem the pledge. This means they pay H&T the value of the loan (whether 1n full or by part payments),
plus the interest accrued to date, or

. Renew the pledge This means they pay H&T the interest only and a new loan agreement s 1ssued for a
further six months

Approximately five months after the date of the loan we will write to the customer explaning that the contract 1s
almost due and reminding them of the final date to redeem We write agamn once the contract 15 expired to give the
customer another opportunity to redeem or renew their pledge

If the customer does not redeem or renew then we have to attempt to reahse the value of the pledge to repay the loan
The Consumer Credit Act sets out a different treatment for pledges over £75 and those £75 and under

. Over £75 These pledges are sent to public auction with a reserve price In the event that the pledge 1s sold
then H&T retamns the value of the loan, interest to date plus a small admimstration fee Any surplus 15 repaid to
the customer

. £75 and under These pledges become the property of H&T immediately, the rules relating to the surplus do
not apply due to the lower value of the items concerned

Regardless of the outcome H&T does not pursue the customer n the rare circumstances when there 1s a shortfall
between the amount due under the agreement and the amount recovered when the item 1s sold Therefore 1f the
customer 1s unable to redeem there will be no further consequences and their credit rating 1s unaffected

As Good as Gold

For some, lending money can be a risky busimess, but not for H&T The loan 1s secured on gold, precious stones or
watches (over 99% of our pawnbroking business) and that security 1s left in our possession for the duration of the
contract If the loan forfeits, then the collateral can be easily hquidated, in almost all cases at a profit




H&T Group pic
What is pawnbroking ? (continued)

Valuations, how H&T manage the process

A pawnbroker advances money secured on items of value Therefore 1t 1s vital that we can determine what those items
are worth to ensure adequate security, whilst also being able to give the customer what they want

1 H&T's pledge book 1s almost entirely gold and diamond set jewellery, as those items are relatively easy to
value and 1 the event of defauit they can be sold enther through the retail window or as a commodity

2 Qur staff ask the customer how much they would like to borrow and perform a visual exammation of the item
Using the weight and metal type we now have a good 1dea of what the item 1s worth based on our general
lending guidelines

3 If we can meet the customer’s expectations then the item 15 tested with a range of acids to determine the metal
type and carat, while diamonds are verified using electromc testing equipment

4 The customer details and a full description of the item are entered to the computer system which calculates a
range of loan values in accordance with Group policy A credit agreement 15 produced and the cash 1ssued to
the customer
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Customers are at the heart of H&T’s business H&T 1s built on delivering excellent customer service and ensuring
customers are getting access to the cash they need 1n the simplest way possible There 1s a very real desire of H&T
staff to help our customers with therr cash flow needs

Use of Funds

Generally our customers use cash generated from an H&T loan or sale of gold to fund day-to-day living expenses
Customers also use our services to solve short-terin cash needs of their business or for more leisure-based needs

The H&T Difference

Being part of the local community 1s paramount to H&T and the long-established culture of excellent customer
service means staff strive to support, empathise and most of all dissolve financial worries It 1s common to hear first
names bemg used between assistant and customer, this 1s through a long-standing expectation that they are there to
help during a time of need

Research

H&T regularly conducts customer mterviews to better understand what 1s important and to assess customer service
standards From H&T's most recent survey with over 350 customer nterviews, over 86% rated their satisfaction 8 or
more out of 10

GRAPHS FOR INCLUSION:

1) Gender split

Pawnbroking 40% male, 60% female

Gold purchasing 34% male, 66% female

2) Age profile

Pawnbroking 18-24 9%, 25-35 26%, 36-44 23%, 45-55 25%, Over 56 17%
Gold purchasing 18-24 14%, 25-35 24%, 36-44 18%, 45-55 21%, Over 56 23%

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
"Nothing 1s ever too much trouble for the team and I value the advice they give me " MM, Clydebank

" Just bought a watch and chain from your Hastings branch Just some feedback, the staff were very professional,
discreet and a joy to do business with Thank you " NM, Hastings

"I was served today by a young lady and gentleman n your shop The lady was very knowledgeable and made
shopping in your store a pleasure The gentleman was also very helpful and both are an asset to your company Great
customer service'" DY, Stoke
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Our business 15 all about vur people and we strive to develop all our employees within their roles

With just under 1,000 staff, H&T 1s committed to helping its team realise their potential through continual career
development and a blended learning programme H&T understands that it 1s vital 1t cares for and supports staff, and
this in turn has a positive impact on meeting business objectives, helping H&T to achieve 1ts strategic aims, develop
new services and offer a great service to customers

Our Learning and Development Department works closely with H&T staff to ensure they are techmically and
behaviourally competent to meet all the requirements of their role

Traming & Development

H&T has developed a range of tailored training programmes, including a Management Development Programme and
STAR programme, which are designed to develop and strengthen existing and potential store managers These
are tallored to the individual’s needs and comprise a combination of coaching and personal development exercises
H&T 15 extremely proud that these unique courses have been an undoubted success, with several managers winmng
national awards for their innovation and drive

H&T continues to design additional workshops and programmes As the range of products and services offered by
H&T expands, H&T needs to ensure that all staff can meet new customer demands and have a wider knowledge
base The courses aim 1o improve the technical knowledge and behavicural skills base, enabling managers to manage
more effectively Examples of courses include a focus on unsecured lending and buyback products

H&T also has an E-Learning system with a catalogue of learning modules that can be accessed from work or home by
all employees The system 1s continucusly developed to support our commercial and compliance objectives

Investors in People (11P)

H&T's focus on people development has led to external recognition H&T was assessed for 1IP and 1s a proud owner
of the Gold Award 1IP provides a framework for businesses to operate effectively through good people
management

NPA Awards

H&T 15 proud to announce that in 2013 two H&T staff collected “Employee of the Year” and “Rising Star” Awards
from the National Pawnbroker’s Association (NPA), achievements that demonstrate H&T's passion for developing
and supporting 1ts people to their full potential

Progression and Recognition

H&T’s retention strategy encourages 1ts people to seek opportunities in the Company, across Stores and Head Office
in order to enhance their skills We adveruse alt available positions weekly to every employee in order to assist them
in appiying for these positions This in addition to Learning & Development activities has meant we have had over
80% of our Deputy Manager and Store Manager roles filled internally

As well as our competitive Pay & Benefits structure we recogmse and reward employee performance by 1ssuing
quarterly and annual bonuses This 1s in conjunction with seasonal incentives and profit share for over performance
against targets We reward our Managers by offering them an annual share option scheme to encourage them to
participate 1n ownership of the company, as well as providing health insurance

Qur “Total Reward” statements, launched 1n 2011, detail exactly the benefits and value of each employee’s
remuneration package This also highlights the value of unsubscribed benefits such as a pension contribution and
cycle-to-work scheme, to demonstrate the full benefits package that staff could receive Feedback of our “Total
Reward” statements 1s very positive
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Other potential rewards include an innovation scheme whereby H&T rewards its employees with up to £1,000 for
new 1deas that are subsequently implemented Many current procedures have been provided by our employees

We have also introduced a recruitment application tracking system which ensures we fairly evaluate all applications

recerved and see the best possible candidates for relevant roles, allowing recruntment and retention of key talent for
our business

Statistics about our people-

Managers Tenure
Years count
0-1 11
1-2 23
23 12
34 22
4.5 26
5+ 95
Full Part
fime time Total
Male 196 67 263
Female 439 285 724
Total 635 352 987

11
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At the heart of H&T’s philosophy 15 ‘Keep It Local’ H&T passionately believes that 1t has a duty to be involved with
the local community Whether fund raising for jocal causes, supporting local business community nitiatives or
getting mvolved with locai networks, H&T works hard to be part of the local community and have some fun at the
same time

In 2013 H&T staff got involved n a wide variety of chanty events up and down the country From food bank
collections, Easter Egg collections, a sponsored walk up Snowden, wrestling matches and jumble sales our staff have
raised thousands of pounds for good causes

Alice in Wonderland made an appearance at H& T Pawnbrokers in Bolton in April when they held a Mad
Hatters Tea Party to raise funds for Derian House Children’s Hospice in Chorley

In May, Wedding Fever hit H&T 1n Coventry, when 1t hosted a wedding-themed Fun Day to raise money for
the local Neonatal Unit

e H&T teamed up with Merseyside Fire Brigade for a charity car wash n July at Liverpool City Centre car park,
with donations divided between local children’s charity KIND and the Princes Trust

Homeless charity Maundy Relief in Accrington received 100 Easter Eggs from H&T 1n Blackburn, after
collecting the eggs from local businesses and through donations from Blackburn customers The successful
Easter egg collection follows an H&T food bank collection in January, where 1t donated food and cash for
sleeping bags and hot water bottles to Maundy Relief

H&T in Portsmouth ran a five-mile charity walk around Portsmouth and Southsea to raise funds for the Motor
Neurone Disease Association (MNDA) in May 2013, including H&T staff, representatives from MNDA
and even mascots Harvey and his Portsmouth sidekick "Pincher the dog"

12




H&T Group plc
Chief Executive’s Review

The Group’s trading, market and regulatory environment has become more challenging throughout 2013

In recent years the growth in high street alternative credit has been fuelled by a combination of nsing gold prices and
an expanston in pay day loans, business models have evolved to maximise one or other revenue stream The falling
gold price coupled with regulatory pressure on pay day loans has resulted in lower earnings across the market, whilst
the increase in store numbers puts pressure both en customer acquisition and balance sheets

Our Group 15 of course no exception The Group has always maintained that gold purchasing 15 not a core earmings
stream and adequate headroom has been maintatned between our average lending rates and the scrap value of gold

The Group continues to monitor its lending policy on a regular basis, with consideration of the impact on
affordability (and therefore redemption rate), and 1ts loan to value in relation to the current gold price As a result of
the Group’s historic pohcy of maintaining an appropriate loan to value ratio we have not had to make significant
changes to lending rates as, in the short term, that can damage consumer confidence

Profit before tax 1n the period fell to £6 7m (2012 £17 Om) principally as a result of the lower gold price impacting
on pawnbroking scrap revenues and gold purchasing gross profit As a consequence, our priority in H2 13 has been to
improve retail sales as the way to maximmise disposition margns, reduce net debt and reduce costs I am pleased to
report good progress with all of these iitiatives

During Q4 2013 our like-for-hike retail sales were up 56% on prior year with gross profit up 18% and this momentum
has been sustained into early 2014 Costs have been reduced as planned and our net debt, as at 31 December 2013,
has reduced to £20 7m from £27 6m at 31 December 2012, net debt has reduced still further since year end to £18 5m
as at 31 January 2014 Qur total operating costs were £44 2m in 2012, reducing to £42 3m 1 2013 despite increasing
the store count to 194 at 31 December 2013

Since 2008 the Group has opened 92 new stores and closed only two The Group expects that as a result of the lower
returns now being delivered from stores there will be a small number of closures in 2014

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Pawn Service Charge

The Group’s Pawn Service Charge grew to £28 8m {2012 £28 4m) and now represents 54 3% of Group gross profit
(2012 45 6%)

While 1t 15 pleasing to note growth m our Pawn Service Charge n every year since flotation, the Group’s key
performance indicators are not performung as we would wish Increased competitive pressure at the Group's older
stores and reduced security by way of the lower gold price have contributed to lending remaining flat year on year
despite the increased contribution from recent store openings On a hke-for-like basis, lending fell by 6 3% year on
year

The possibility of a further reduction in quantities of gold in circulation remains a concemn for the Group and supports
our drive to widen the asset base upon which we lend Of the £104m lent 1n 2013, the Group lent £7 2m on watches
and £14 8m on gem set items Increasngly, a younger generation of customers are seeking the opportunity to raise
cash from electronic items such as phones, tablets, laptops and game consoles Taking advantage of this ‘asset’ class
the Group now offers a Buy Back service, whereby customers can sell their electronic items to H&T for cash and
enter into an agreement to buy the item back within 31 days This service 1s now offered in all of H&T’s stores In
order to manage risk goods taken are restricted to current models with clear routes of disposiion  During the year the
Group purchased £0 7m of high-end electronics using Buy Back

In addition to the Buy Back service, other key initiatives to drive customer numbers in 2013, included

- Focus on increasing lending on watches and gemset jewellery, up 5 7% on 2012,

The launch of Sona Loans™, the pawnbroking service specifically for the Asian community, the first of us
kind 1n the UK,

- The launch of foreign exchange 1n all stores, the service brought 31,730 new customers to H&T 1n 2013,

Production of lapsed customer mailers, including a retal discount offering as a means of replemshing
customer’s assets,

13




H&T Group ple
Chief Executive’s Review

- Engagement with the local community through the Keep it Local campaign where stores are coordinating
activity to reinvigorate the local high street and engage with local business groups and charities

The reduced gold price has placed pressure on loan to value ratios in the year as we seek to maintain adequate
security 1n the loan whilst also being competitive to attract new customers We have historically managed loan to
value well such that even with the reduced gold price our historic loans still have adequate security We believe this
provides a competitive advantage in the short term as other providers must alter lending rates significantly to control
their exposure

Retail

Competitive pressure on lending rates and the reduced gold price have combined to sigmficantly reduce the viabihity
of melting stock as a source of profitable disposition of excess stock Retail has accordingly seen sigmficant
additional focus in H2 13, acting both as a hedge against a falling gold price and as a means of supporting our loan
valuations

I am pleased to report that sales have increased by 24% year on year to £24 9m (2012 £20 1m) with most growth
occurring i H2 2013 Continued capital investment mnto bright and welcoming stores, together with the increased
working capital invested 1n stock levels provide the Group with a solid base from which to further grow retail sales
Other mnimatives include a rebranding across a small number of trial stores, improved point of sale materials n store
and allowing store managers greater opetational flexibility in store All of the above has led to a dramatic upturn i
retail sales as evidenced by our quarterly hike-for-like sales performance versus prior year Q1 13 -20%, Q2 13 -4%,
Q313 7%, Q4 13 56%

The retail margin fell from 49 0% 1n 2012 to 39 8% in 2013 This decrease 1s due to an increased cost of goods
resulting from higher lending rates in 2012 and repricing to reflect the lower gold price  Our focus 1s to use retail to
drive additional gross profit and support our lending proposition by providing a profitable disposition route for
unredeemed goods We would not necessarily expect a return to historic margins without adversely impacting
volume of sales

Pawnbroking Scrap

Pawnbroking scrap profits totalled £1 8m (2012 £7 4m) Spliting thus nto half yearly performances reveals the
impact of the gold price fall In HI 13, profits were £]1 9m with a margin of 23%, while in H2 13 losses totalled
£0 Im on sales of £6 7Tm

At the current gold price and current average lent rate on items forfeited (which 1s circa 12% higher than the Group’s
average overall lending rate), the Group 1s not expecting to make a margm on pawnbroking scrap for at least the next
six months unul lending rates are re-adjusted The Group 1s currently focussing on maximising Its pawn service
charge subject to managing lending rates to ensure affordability and therefore high rates of redemption Retail sales,
as discussed, will be the key disposition route

Gold Purchasing

Gold Purchasing profits declined from £12 0m i 2012 to £4 8m 1n 2013 This decrease 15 attributable to four key
factors

1 A lower gold price year on year At 31 December 2013 the sterling gold price was £727 per troy ounce (31
Dec 12 £1,020) This 29% fall directly impacts on the gross profits of each transaction The dechning gold
price, due to the lag between purchase and sale, has also led to a lower margin than would have been achieved
In a stable price environment

it Closure of Gold Bar operations The Group’s retail mall units contributed £0 7m to gold purchasing profits in
2013 as compared to £3 1m 1n 2012 as the Group has gradually exited this operation Closing units throughout
the year due to the flexible and short-term basis upon which the operation was founded, the Group now has no
retail mall units 1n operation

m  Volume dechne Underlying gold purchasing volumes, or in other words, the weight of gold purchased, have
been 1n decline for the last 2 % years Over the last twelve months, i1t 1s estimated that the decline across the
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Group’s store estate was 26% The Group has always viewed gold purchasing as a short term opportunity
rather than a core earnings stream

v Improved retall sales A greater percentage of gold purchased has been disposed of via the Group’s retal
operations as opposed to being melted and therefore recorded within gold purchasing revenues During Q4
2013 the cost of goods sold through the retail channel was up by 118% on prior year

We believe, that as well as remaming competitive on pricing, the Group’s longevity n this market 1s helping to build
brand recognition and trust among cur customers

Cheque Cashing

Cheque Cashing mmcome fell to £3 3m (2012 £3 7m) due to the withdrawal from Pay Day Loans and teduced
numbers of third party cheques 1n circulation

The largest component of the decline was 1n Pay Day Loans which 1s no longer offered in our stores in favour of the
more flexible personal loans offering that replaced KwikLoan The Group expects that Pay Day Loans will continue
to face regulatory scrutiny and pressure and notes that the FCA has committed to capping the number of rollovers to
two and, after government intervention, a cap on their interest rates  These controls will impact sigmficantly on
providers of these services and we believe that this can create further opportunities for the business as we establish
our personal loans offering

Personal Loans

The Group has replaced the KwikLean product in stores with a new more flexible personal loans offering The new
product enables a customer to choose a loan amount of up to £1,000, subject to affordability, and a repayment term of
up to two years The new product 1s supported by new in-store applications systems, central underwriting and an
enhanced admmistration and coliections system We plan to launch this offering online during 2014

The loan book, net of provisions, increased to £2 Om at the year-end (2012 £] 2Zm)

REGULATION

The regulation of consumer credit 15 moving from the Office of Fair Trading (“OFT™) to the Financial Conduct
Authonity (“FCA™) in April 2014 The FCA has 1ssued consultation documents on the new regime and plans to
publish a final Consumer Credit sourcebook in March 2014 The FCA expects that all credit businesses wall comply
with the core FCA requirements 1n terms of the principles and management standards from April 2014 but there will
be a period of s1x months to comply fully with the new Consumer Credit sourcebook

There are a number of specific provisions within the new regime relating to High Cost Short Term Credit, designed to
impact Pay Day Loans and we expect further requirements to emerge in due course The Group has now withdrawn
fully from Pay Day Loans At present the current regulations and legislation relating to pawnbroking have been
transferred to the new regime without significant changes We do not expect the interest rate cap to impact
pawnbroking at this potnt

'The Group has employed a Compliance Manager to supplement and enhance the existing comphance functions
within the business and ensure that we manage through this significant change successfully
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BUSINESS STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The Group seeks to retain its position as the UK’s leading pawnbroker by providing easy access to cash and other
related services in a fair, safe and friendly environment that exceeds the expectations of our customers The Group
aims to maintam 11s high levels of repeat custom with a continued focus on brand recognition, excellent customer
service, Investment n the existing store estate and mamtaimng 1ts reputation for faimess and honesty

The Group believes that the demand for small sum, short term cash loans remains strong and by mncreasing the range
of assets 1t accepts, by developing an attractive unsecured loan offer and through better marketing 1t can continue to
succeed as the market adjusts 1n 2014 The successful introduction of new services such as Western Union and FX
dnives footfall to our stores enabling the Group to communicate 1ts range of services to a wider customer base whilst
also providing incremental revenue

Current trading 15 1n line with management’s expectations for 2014 and in particular the growth in retail seen in Q4
2013 has continued into early 2014

I would also like to add my great thanks to those of the Chairman, in recognising all our people whose skills,
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GRAPHS FOR INCLUSION

1) Gross profit breakdown

Pawnbroking (includes retail and scrap) 81 2%, Gold purchasing 9 6%, Financial Services 9 2%

ii) New store openings as a % of the estate at 31 December 2013

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
62% 8 8% 62% 12 4% 10 3% 26%

iii) End of period sterling gold price (£ per troy oz)

2008 604 9
2009 673 4
2010 8977
2011 9851
2012 1,019 7

2013 7272
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Expansion of the Store Estate

H&T’s geographical development follows a clustering model This 1s principally due to the need to support new
stores with existing operational management and staff to maximise returns

Practically, this means that where we enter a new market there are two main phases of development The first 15 the
mitial acquisition or greenfield store followed by a period of development to provide a stable and successful team
The second phase 1s the consolidation of that market through the creation of a discrete area containing 8 to 15 stores

This strategy has been demonstrated with focussed development in Glasgow, the North East and the North West

The wider market 15 now experiencing lower returns due to a number of factors which will slow expansion 1n the
short term as operators drive efficiency and a degree of consolidation This 15 expected to provide acquisition
opportunities for stores and for loan books

A net 8 stores were added 1n 2013 (2012 26) taking the total store estate size to 194 stores
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 we have delivered £6 7m profit before tax, down from £17 Om 1n 2012
primanly as a result of the reduced gold price and competitive environment

The Group has taken a measured approach to cost reduction 1n the year resuliing n total direct and admimistrative

expenses bemng £1 9m lower than 2012 despite having more stores i operation The reduction 18 mainly as a result of ‘
the closure of the GoldBar gold buying units as we took advantage of the flexible license arrangements and exited the
units as they became unprofitable

The Group had taken the decision to close 7 stores at 31 December 2013 and has provided a total of £729k in respect
of the total expected costs of closure

Finance costs reduced to £842k (2012 £1,532k) as a result of improved terms on the new four year credit agreement
signed 1n January 2013 together with a lower average loan balance through the year

CASH FLOW

The Group generated positive cash flow from operating activities of £15 4m (2012 £11 4m) despite lower earnings

mainly due to a £10 2m improvement 1n working capital movements The total working capital movement 1n the year

was an inflow of £6 9m compared to an outflow of £3 3m in the prior year, the main component of these movements

being the change 1n the pledge balance !

BALANCE SHEET '

As at 31 December 2013 the Group had net assets of £88 Im (2012 £86 8m) with period end net debt of £20 7m
(2012 £27 6m) delivering a reduction 1n gearing to 23 5% (2012 31 8%)(see note 27) This reduction was planned
m order to de-risk the balance sheet 1n hight of the challenging market conditions

On 30 January 2013 the Group entered into a new 4 year facility with Lloyds TSB Bank allowing for maximum
borrowings of £50m, subject to covenants, at a margin of between 1 25% and 2 25% above LIBOR At year end
£26m was drawn on the facility, the Group was well within the covenants with a net debt to EBITDA ratio of | 78x
and interest to EBITDA ratio of 17 44x

The combination of low geaning and a secure long term credit facihty provides the Group with the ability to make
selective investments 1n the future whilst mamntaining appropnate headroom

Investments

During the year the Group completed acquisiions comprising 3 stores and 4 pawnbroking loan books for a total
consideration of £2 4m The Group also opened 5 new stores during the year taking the total store estate to 194 units

Impairment

The reduced gold price has impacted the earnings of the Group and of the stores that have been acquired historically
The Group performs an annual review of the expected earnings of each acquired store and considers whether the
associated goodwill and other fixed assets are impaiwred  As at 31 December 2013 the Group mmpaired the value of 4
stores which were acquired 1n 2012 and 2013 The total value of the impairment was £517k

Share Price and EPS

At 31 December 2013 the share price was 143 5p (2012 281 Op) and market capitalisatton was £52 9m (2012
£102 8m) Basic earmings per share was 13 44p (2012 35 92p), diluted earmngs per share was 13 40p (2012
35 52p) and diluted net assets per share equated 10 243p (2012 239p)

The Group's market value fell below net asset value during the year as pressure on earnings reduced market
confidence The Group believes that the action taken to drive alternative earning streams, control costs and de-nisk
the balance sheet will build confidence going forward

Steve Fen
Finance Director
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The Board formally reviews the material risks and ensures that these are appropriately managed by the executive
management team The Board retains ultimate responsibility for the Group’s risk management framework, including
reviewing its effectiveness, however 1t has delegated responsibility for annually reviewing the overall effectiveness of
the risk management programme to the Audit Committee The mnternal audit function provides assurance to the Audit

Commuttee on the effectiveness of the internal control procedures through completion of the annual internal audit
plan, which takes into account current business risks

The table below sets out the principal risks and uncertamnties facing the Group and how we mitigate them This 1s not
an exhaustive analysis of all the risks the Group may face as there may be additional risks and uncertainties that are
not presently known to the Board or have not been included n this section on the basis that they are not considered

1o be maternal

Principal risks and uncertainties

Area

Regulatory
Comphance

Pawnbroking

Description of risk

- Failure to comply leads to action by
the regulator ranging from fines to
revocation of credit license

- Increasing competition

- Potential changes 1n regulatory
environment

- Fall in the gold price affecting existing

pledge security and future lending
levels

- Fall in the gold price affecting scrap
margin

- Decline n retail sales

- Fall in pawnbroking redemption

- Increased availability of gold
purchasing option for consumers

Examples of mitigating activities

- Membership of Trade Associations to ensure
the business 1s aware of current requirements

- Experienced management team with
significant industry expenence and knowledge

- Extensive training and monitoring

- Use of standard approved documentation

- High quality software systems to support
comphiant behaviour

- Internal Audit and Compliance functions

- Contiual monitoring at store level

- Expansion strategy to mamntamm H & T’s
position as one of the industry key players

- Maintenance of a high level of customer
service

- Continual monitoring and lobbying

- Monitoring of gold price

- Maintenance of appropriate margin between
pledge value and gold price

- Lending on alternative igh value 1tems

- Review possible use of hedging instruments

- Focus on increasing redemption rates to
mtmimise reliance on disposition

- Increase retail sales as a disposition hedge

- Excess stock scrapped to recover value lent

- Increase in disposition through retail, auction
and scrap activities

- Pawnbroking 1s a long established business
model, with pawnbroking customers bemng
distinct from purchasing customers

- Experienced management team with
significant industry knowledge
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Principal risks and uncertanties (continued)

Area

Cash, pledge book
and retail inventory

Cheque cashing and
unsecured lending

Gold purchasing

Business operations

People

Financing

Description of risk

- Physical security of all assets

- Insufficient pledge securities

- Significant worsening of bad debts

- Dechine in third party cheque
encashment business

- Increasing competition impactng on
volumes purchased and margins
achieved

- Fatl in the sterling gold price adversely
impacting scrap margins

- Back office and communication
systems failure

- Succession, retention and capability

- Safety & security of employees being
placed at threat

Potennial increase in cost of financing
due to borrowings being on a floating
rate

- Bank funding 1s subject to strict
financial covenants

- Financing bank going bankrupt

Examples of mitigating activities

- High level of investment 1n security systems
- Insurance

- Staff trainming and pledge tests

- Monitoring of established lending criteria

- Internal audut function reviewing individual
pledges on average twice a year

- Investment in IT systems

- Staff training

- Continual monitormg of bad debts and lending
criteria

- On-going reduction n overall business mtx
and replacement by new services and products

- Constant monitoring of competitor’s pricing
- Progressive marketing strategies

- Adjust purchase price offered to compensate
for market movements 1n gold price
- Possible use of hedging instruments

- Established IT disaster recovery plan
- Systems designed with no single poimt of
fatlure

- High investment in on-going tramning
- Performance related pay package
- Share-based incentive plans

- No of in store deterrents to deter violent
intruders (CCTV, alarms, safes, fog)

- Employer and public hability insurance mn
place

- Group policy of no remonstration

- Use of hedging instruments where appropnate
(interest rate swap)
- Regular forecasting exercise and regular

communication with the financing bank

- Rewview of existing financing facilities and
possible use of syndicated banking
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose 1t to a number of financial nisks including interest rate nsk, credit risk, hquidity risk
and price nisk The use of financial derivatives 15 governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of
directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks The Group does
not use derivative financial mstruments for speculative purposes

A summary of the principal financial risks 1s provided below Further detailed discussion 1s provided in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements

Interest rate nisk

The Group's activities expose 1t primarily to the financial nisks of changes n interest rates  Finance costs have
reduced as a result of lower interest rates and lower loan balances and at present the Board does not consider it
necessary to enter into a hedging arrangement This position 1s reviewed by the Board on a regular basis

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables The Group’s credit
risk 15 primarily attributable to 1ts trade receivables, the most significant of which are the pledge book, the KwikLoan
loan book, Payday Advances and Cheque Cashing balances In all cases, exposure on trade and other receivables 1s
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers

The nsk attributable to the pledge book is further mitigated due to the presence of collaterals (the customer’s
pledges) which can be easily liquidated in almost all cases at a profit

The nsks attached to the unsecured KwikLoan loan book are mitigated by the continual monitoring of bad debts and
a possible modification of lending criteria  The Group performs an external credit check prior to lending Similar
procedures mitigate the risks associated with Cheque Cashing activities

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for
mmpairment 1s made where there 1s an 1dentified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a
reduction n the recoverability of the cash flows

The credit risk on hquid funds and derivative financial instruments 1s considered to be low as funds are held with
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies to the Group’s bankers
as shown below

Moody’s credit rating

Barclays Bank plc A2
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc A3
Lloyds TSB Bank plc A2

The Group has no sigmficant concentration of credit risk ‘other than on net bank balances of £335,000 (2012
£329,000) with Royal Bank of Scotland ple, £933,000 with Barclays Bank plc (2012 £3,753,000) and £75,000
(2012 £mil) with Lloyds TSB Bank plc
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Ligquiduty risk

In order to mantain hquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the Group uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance At 31 December 2013, the Group
had sufficient headroom on its current borrowings and remains in full compliance with all loan covenants

Furthermore, the Company will review at the appropriate time, the possibility of raising future equity finance or
refinance existing banking facilities to expand activities

Price risk

With regard to the current balance sheet position, the Group 15 not exposed to price nisk, as the majority of 1ts
jewellery and all of its scrap gold 1s obtamned through unredeemed pledges, which have a cost to the Group which 1s
lower than the retai value The Group 15 however exposed to adverse movements in the price of gold in 1ts gold
scrap activities and the value of the pledge collaterals Should the price of gold drop significantly, the Group can
mitigate that nisk by changing us lending policy on pawnbroking pledges or by entering hedging nstruments
Currently the Group has no gold hedge in place, although this 1s reviewed by the Board on a regular basis

Exchange rate risk

While the Group’s activities are wholly conducted 1n Great Britamn, the Group 15 impacted by foreign currency
exchange rates affecting the gold price exchange from USD to GBP and the revaluation of foreign currency cash
holdings in store
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STRATEGIC REPORT APPROVAL

the Finance Director’s Report and the Risks and Uncertainties

By order of the Board

Company Secretary
26 February 2014

The Strategic Report mcorporates the Financial Highlights, the Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive s Report,
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Directors, Officers and Advisers

Executive Directors

John G Nichols

Chief Executive, 63

After an early career in the RAF, John entered the leisure industry with the Rank Organisation where he held several
senior executive positions

John jomned H&T as Managing Director m 1997 and subsequently became Chief Executive He has been mstrumental
n developing and implementing the business strategy and delivermng consistent growth in revenues and profitabihity
He has also been instrumental 1n the mitiative to obtain the ISO9001 and Investors in People Gold accreditations

Stephen A Fenerty

Fmance Director, 40

Stephen trained with KPMG’s banking and finance team where he completed his accountancy training, since then he
has pursued a variety of management roles i the alternative credit sector Stephen joned H&T in March 2005 as
Commercial Director before taking on the role as Finance Director in December 2013  Stephen has direct
responsibility for finance, IT, unsecured lending, acquisitions, compliance and eredit risk

Non-Executive Directors

Peter D McNamara

Chatrman, 63

Peter spent the majority of his career with Lloyds Bank plc, as chief manager for strategic planning, mergers and
acquisitions, and then as the managing director of Personal Banking He subsequently served as group managing
director of the Alliance & Leicester plc and Chief Executive of Wesleyan Assurance Society, a mutual hfe insurance
busmess [n 2002 he left to become Chairman and subsequently executive Chairman of Moneybox plc, the leading
ATM deployer operating in the UK, Germany and the Netherlands, which he led to flotation on AIM

In 2006 he set up a new ATM business, Notemachine Ltd and 1s the CEO

Malcelm L Berryman, 59

Malcolm 1s currently a Non-Executive Director at Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust and runs his own
consultancy business primarily nvolved m lfe and general insurance Between 1990 and 2005, he was Chief
Executive of two Insurers, Liverpool Victoria and Crown Financial Management He qualified as an Actuary in 1983

James F Thornton, 56

James 1s currently a Director at Strand Partners, a position he has held since 2009 Previously James held senior
positions with Lord Ashcroft KCMG associated companies - Anne Street Partners and Global Health Partner plc He
has more than fifteen years of experience 1in UK financial services including UK Finance Director at Old Mutual plec
and as Head of Foreign Exchange at IFX plc James 1s a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
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Corporate Governance

The directors recognmise the importance of adopting good corporate governance practices in the best interests of all
shareholders Although the Company 1s not required to report on comphiance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (“the Code™) since its shares are traded on the Ai1M market, the Company complies, so far as practical, with the
Code m the following ways

Directors
The Board

The Board comprises two executive directors and three non-executive directors Their biographies appear on page 25
A review of these shows a range of experience and expertise sufficient to bring mdependent judgement on 1ssues of
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct which 15 vital to the success of the Group The three non-
executive directors hold shares as disclosed on page 32 However, because the number of shares held 1s small, there 1s
no entitlement to share options for non-executives, and there are no cross directorships between executive and non-
executive directors, the non-executive directors are considered to be independent

Board meetings

The Board 15 responsible to the shareholders for the proper management of the Group A statement of directors’
responsibilities in respect of the financial statement 15 set out in this Annual Report on page 38

The Board meets 10 times during the year To enable the Board to discharge 1its duties, all directors receive
appropriate and timely information Briefing papers are distributed to all directors i advance of the Board meetings
There 15 a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board which include the determunation of strategy, approval of
new stores and acquisitions, approval of budget and major capital expenditure

At Board meetings, the agenda normally comprises a review of the management accounts, a CEO review of
operations, a review of new store proposals and potential acquisitions and an update on the progress of the Group’s
other strategic objectives

The Board meetings in August and February cover the approval of the interim and prehminary financial results
respectively and the November meeting deals with the approval of the annual budget

The following committees deal with the specific aspects of the Group’s affairs

Remuneration Commitiece

The Remuneration Commuttee comprises three independent Non-Executive Dhirectors of the Company The members
of the Commutice are

¢+ Malcolm Berryman (Chairman)
e  Peter D McNamara
s James F Thomton

The Commuttee meets at least twice in each year and at such other times as the Chaurman of the Commuttee sees fit

The Chairman of the Commttee 1s appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee
The quorum for the Comnittee 1s two
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Remuneration Committee (continued)
The duties of the Commuttee are to

¢ determine and agree with the Board the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the Chairman,
executive Directors and any employees that the Board delegates to it,

* within the terms of the agreed policy, determune individual remuneration packages including bonuses,
incentive payments, share options, pension arrangements and any other benefits,

¢ determine the contractual terms on terminanion and individual termination payments, ensuring that the duty
of the individual to mitigate loss 1s fully recognised,

e n determiming ndividual packages and arrangements, give due regard to the comments and
recommendations of the Code,

¢ be told of and be given the chance to advise on any major changes mn employee benefit structures in the

Company,

s recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior managers below Board level as
determined,

o agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the Chief Executive and from the Chairman of the
Board, and

* recommend an annual report for the Board to put to Shareholders on executive remuneration compliant with
relevant legal and regulatory provisions

The Committee 15 authorised by the Board to

seek any mformation 1t requires from any employee of the Group n order to perform its duties,
be responsible for establishing the selection criteria and then for selecting, appointing and setting the terms
of reference for any remuneration consultants providing advice to the Commuittee, at the Group’s expense,
and

e obtam, at the Group’s expense, outside legal or other professional advice where necessary 1n the course of
its activities

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company The members of the
Commuttee are

¢ James F Thomnton (Chairman)
* Malcolm Berryman
o Peter D McNamara

The Audit Commuttee reviews each year the arrangements for safeguarding auditor objectivity and independence The
Audit Commuttee reviews the scope, results and cost-effectiveness of internal and external audit, and has delegated
power from the Board to exercise the power from sharcholders to agree fees for external auditors The Audit
Committee 15 responsible for satisfying itself on the independence and objectivity of external auditors and the
independence of internal auditors As directed by the Audit Commuttee, the principal function of the Group’s internal
audit team 15 to verify the physical presence and control procedures surrounding the cash, pledge and stock balances
within stores and the Group’s Jewellery Centre The Commuttee reviews the operation of mternal controls and reports
to the Board on the annual review of the internal control and nsk management
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Nomnation Commuttee

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company The members of
the Committee are

e Peter D McNamara {Chairman)
*  Malcolm Berryman
s James F Thornton

The function of the Nomnation Committee 15 to provide a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board In carrying out its duties, the Nommation Committee 15 primarily
responstble for

identifying and nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies,
evaluating the structure and composition of the Board with regard to the balance of skills, knowledge and
expenence and making recommendations accordingly,
s reviewing the time requirements of Non-Executive Directors,
giving full consideration to succession planning, and
e reviewing the leadership of the Group

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that 1t 1s responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for the continuing
process of reviewing the effectiveness of the internal controls Internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than ehminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss The directors confirm that they have reviewed the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control that have been 1n operation during the year The Group has an internal audit function
principally for periodic store visits

Internal control: financial
The internal control process has been reviewed and its main features are

e Financial Reporting there 1s a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget approved by the
Board Monthly trading results are reported against the corresponding figures for the budget and previous
year The Board also reviews re-forecasts on a regular basis

¢ Capital Expenditure there 15 a comprehensive budgeting system for capital expenditure with an annual
budget approved by the Board The Finance Director authorises individual items of capital expenditure and
material items are also authonised by the Board or CEO

e Cash flow an annual cash flow forecast 1s drawn up and approved by the Board and actual cash flow 15
reviewed monthly against this forecast

*  Organisational Structure a clear orgamisational structure with defined responsibilities and clear authority
levels has been set

o Store Audits a Stores Audit function exists to ensure that Group procedures regarding cash, pledges and
stock handling are being adhered to

Internal control: risk management

During the year, the Group had in place formalised procedures to 1dentify, evaluate and manage significant risks and
to enable management to assess and regularly report to the board on 1ssues relating to business, aperattonal, financial
and non-comphance nsks

Relations with shareholders

The board recognises the importance of communications with shareholders The Chief Executive’s statement and the
operational review on pages 13 to 16 include a detailed review of the business and future developments There 15 a
regular dialogue with insututional shareholders including presentations after the Group’s preliminary announcement
of the year end results and at the half year results
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Principal activities and review of the business

The main activities of the Group continue to be pawnbroking, gold purchasing, retail of jewellery, cheque cashing,
unsecured lending and other related services operated through Harvey & Thompson Limited The principal activity
of the Company s that of a non-trading holding company for Harvey & Thompson Limited and H & T Finance
Limited

A review of the business and 1ts future development (including the information that fulfils the relevant requirements
of section 417 of the Companies Act 2006) 1s given in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Review and
Finance Director’s Review on pages 3 to 19

Dividends

The directors propose a final dividend of 2 7p (2012 8 05p) per share subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting on 10 April 2014 This proposed dividend, in accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’
for the Group, and, FRS 21 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’ for the Company, has not been provided for in the
attached financial statements During the year, the Company paid the final dividend for the year ended 31 December -
2012 of 8 05p per share and an interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2 1p per share (2012

3 80p per share)

Capital structure

Details of the authorised share capital are shown 1n note 26 to the consolidated financial statements The company
has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income Each share carnies the right to one vote at
general meetings of the Company As disclosed n note 26, during the period 270,008 new ordinary shares (2012
462,372y of £0 05 each were 1ssued, called up and fully paid as part of the Group’s share option and long term
incentive plans

As a result of the above the nomunal 1ssued share capital has increased from £1,829,313 as at 31 December 2012 to
£1,842,813 as at 31 December 2013

As at 1 February 2014, the company has been notified of the following voting nights by major shareholders of the
Company

Percentage of

voting rights and

1ssued share

Name of holder capital

Artemus Investment Management | 18 5%

Henderson Global Investors 96%

Fidelity Management & Rescarch 5 8%
NBIM i e A%

Baiilie Gifford 4 2%

Octopus Investments 4 1%

Directors 38%
Pershing, New JerseyND) -\ . ...\ . 32%

Dewning 30%

Hof Hoomeman Bankiers 26%

Details of employee share schemes are set out i note 27 Under these share schemes, there are currently potentially
an additional 1,648,484 shares that will be 1ssued to current option holders at the call of the option holder Under its
Articles of Association, the Company has authority to allot under these share schemes, for cash, up to a maximum of
3,685,626 ordinary shares without being required to offer such securities to all shareholders in accordance with
statutory pre-emption rights
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Capital structure (continued)

On any date, no option may be granted under any share option scheme or long term incentive plan, 1f (as a result) the
aggregate nominal value of ordmary shares ssued or 1ssuable pursuant to options granted duning the previous 10
years under any share option scheme would exceed 10% of the nomnal value of the share capital of the Company in
1ssue on that date

There are no other potentially dilutive equity instruments mn the Company m 1ssue at 31 December 2013 or
31 December 2012

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appomtment and replacement of directors, the Company is governed by its Aruicles of
Association, the Comparues Acts and related legislation and requires certain directors annually to retire by rotation
The Articles themselves may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company, such
as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease arrangements and employees® share plans None of
these are considered to be sigmificant in terms of thewr likely 1mpact on the business of the Group as a whole

Furthermore the directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company, or any other group company, and
its directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a
takeover bid

Directors and their interests

The directors who served throughout the year and to the date of this report, except where otherwise stated, were as
follows

Executive

J G Nichols

A M Maby (resigned 29 November 2013)
S A Fenerty

Non-Executive
P D Mc¢cNamara
M Berryman
J F Thornton

The directors hold the following notifiable beneficial interests in the ordinary share caprtal of the Company

At 1 January Acquired Disposed At 31 December
Director Type of share 2013 n the year  of 1n the year 2013
J G Naichols Ordinary 5p shares 1,066,050 - - 1,066,050
S A Fenerty Ordinary 5p shares 300,000 - - 300,000
P D McNamara Ordmary Sp shares 17,351 - - 17,351
M Berryman Ordinary 5p shares 2,000 - - 2,000
J F Thornton Ordmary 5p shares - 5,000 - 5,000
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Directors and thesr interests (continued)

As a result of the Approved and Unapproved Share Option Schemes operated by the Group, the directors have a
beneficial interest 1n the following options granted over ordinary shares tn H & T Group plc

J G Nichols

- 2006 Scheme
- 2007 Scheme
- 2008 Scheme
- 2009 Scheme
- 2010 Scheme

A M Maby
- 2010 Scheme
- 2011 Scheme

S A Fenerty

- 2006 Scheme
- 2007 Scheme
- 2008 Scheme
- 2009 Scheme
- 2010 Scheme
- 2011 Scheme

No share options were granted to any director in 2012 and 2013

Market
Granted Exercised Forfeited Price on
At start during during During Atend  Exercse date Date from
of year  the year year  the year of year price exercised which Expiry
No. No No No. No pence pence exercisable date
87,397 - - - 87,397 182 5p - 8/9/2009 7/9/2016
78,390 - - - 78,390 217 5p - 17/5/2080  16/5/2017
92,293 - - - 92,293 175 5p - §5/5/201%  14/5/2018
87.628 - - - 87,628 194 Op - 1/5/2012  30/4/2019
93,686 - - - 93,686 245 5p - 200472013 19/472020
439,394 - - - 439,394
65,173 - - (65,173) - 245 5p - 20/412013  19/4/2020
14,451 - - (14,451) - 298 5p - 19/472014  18/4/2021
79,624 - - (79.624) -
51,233 - - 58,233 182 5p - 8/9/2009 7/9/2016
45,517 - - 45517 217 5p - 17/5/2010  16/5/2017
59,544 - - 59,544 175 5p - 15/572011  14/5/2018
61,855 - - 61,855 194 Op - 1/5/2012  30/4/2019
54,989 - - 54,989 245 5p - 20/412013  19/4/2020
11,476 - - 11,476 298 5p - 19/4/2014  18/4/2021
284,614 - - 284,614
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Directors and their interests (continued)

The following directors have also a beneficial interest in conditional shares granted as part of the Long Term Incentive
Plan {further details are provided within note 27)

Granted Exercised Forfeited Date when
At start during during the During Atend Exercise  conditional
of year the year year the year of year price grant 1s
No No. No No. Na pence achievable
J G Nichols
-2008 LTIP - - - - - 0 0p 7112011
-2011 LTIP 77,174 - - - 77,174 - 1/4/2014
-2012 LTIP 80,778 - - - 80,778 - 17/4/2015
- 2013 LTIP - 82,276 - - 82,276 - 28/3/2016
157,952 82,276 - - 240,228
A M Maby
- 2011 LTIP 42,781 - - (42,781) - - 1/4/2014
- 2012 LTIP 50,750 - - (50,750) - - 17/4/2015
93,531 - - (93,531} -
S A Fenerty
- 2008 LTIP - - - - - 0 Op 7/11/2011
-2011 LTIP 33,973 - - - 33,973 - 1/4/2014
- 2012 LTiP 40,301 - - - 40,301 - 17/4/2015
- 2013 LTIP - 41,048 - - 41,048 - 28/312016
74,274 41,048 - - 115,322

31 December 2013, the market price of H & T Group plc’s shares was 143 5p and the range during the year ended
31 December 2013 was 127p —320p

None of the directors hold any interests in the shares of any other company within the H & T Group plc group

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the following directors will by rotation be offering
themselves for re-election

P D McNamara
M Berryman

Directors’ indemnities

Under the Company’s articles of association, any director 1s entitled to be indemmified by the Company (to the extent
permitted by law) against any lability mncurred by him in defending proceedings which relate to any acts or
omissions 1n his capacity as officer of the Company In addition, the Company maintains insurance for the benefit of
the directors in respect of such matters which it considers to be appropriate These arrangements were In force
throughout the whole of the current and preceding financial years
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Aggregate directors’ remuneration

The total amounts for directors’ remuneration were as follows

2013 2012

£ £

Emoluments 726,249 961,534
Gains on exercise of share options - 67,267
Amounts gained under loeng term incentive schemes - 719,633
Money purchase pension contributions 54,566 55,389

780,815 1,803,823

Directors’ emoluments and compensation

Fees/Basic Benefits Annual 2013 2012
Name of director salary mn kind bonuses Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Executive
J G Nichols 240,454 11,973 - 252,427 348,903
A M Maby (resigned 29 November 2013) 162,916 9,290 - 172,206 250,005
S A Fenerty 142,291 9,850 - 152,141 200,608
Non-executive
P D McNamara 69,525 - - 69,525 69,525
A ] Brown - - - - 48,007
M Berryman 41,200 - - 41,200 41,200
I F Thornton 38,750 - - 38,750 3,226
Aggregate emoluments 695,136 31,113 - 726,249 961,534

Directors’ annual bonus scheme

Remuneration Commuttee consider the total remuneration package available to Executive directors in hight of market
practice for companies of a sumlar size and delivering a similar shareholder performance As part of the total
package, Executive directors are entitled to receive an annual bonus, subject to meeting certain performance
conditions These performance conditions, the maximum bonus payable and the proportion paid for on-target
performance are set by the Remuneration Commuittee m advance of each financial year

The 2013 bonus structure was as follows

e Executive directors receive a percentage of salary for achieving on-target performance For 2013, the target
set was achievement of the Group profit before tax budget

e For each 1% out-performance to the target, an additional payment of 2 0% - 3 0% of salary would also be
made No director can receive a bonus of more than 190% of salary

The 2013 bonus scheme ncluded a provision to pay a proportion of the bonus in shares to Executive Directors who
do not have a shareholding at least equal to one year’s salary, until that shareholding has reached the equivalent of
one year’s salary
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Directors’ pension entitlements

3 directors were members of money purchase schemes during the year Contributions paid by the company n respect
of such directors were as follows

2013 2012
£ £
J G Nichols 24,045 23,812
A M Maby (resigned 29 November 2013) 16,292 17,600
S A Fenerty : 14,229 13,977
54,566 55,389

Personnel

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 9 to the consohidated accounts All
employees have contracts of employment with Harvey & Thompson Limited, the trading subsidiary mthe H& T
Group plc group

Harvey & Thompson Limited maintains a policy of equal opportunities and 1s committed to ensuring that all
mmdividuals are treated fairly, with respect and are valued

All employees are mcentivised through different bonus schemes Store managers and management also qualfy for
the approved share optron scheme (ASOS) while directors and senior management also quahfy for the unapproved
share option scheme (USOS) The executive directors also qualify for the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) Further
details on share option plans are provided 1n note 27

Employee consultation

Consultation with employees or their representatives has continued at all tevels, with the aim of ensuring that their
views are taken into account when decisions are made that are ltkely to affect their interests and that all employees
are aware of the financial and economic performance of their stores, regional areas and of the Group as a whole This
15 achieved through formal and informal meetings, weekly information bulletins, employee surveys, a quarterly
newsletter and every year through a store managers’ conference

Employment of the disabled

It 1s the policy of the Group to give full and fair consideration to the employment of disabled persons 1n jobs suited
to their individual circumstances and, as appropriate, to consider them for recruitment opportunities, career
development and traming Where possible, arrangements are made for the contimung employment of employees
who have become disabled whilst 1n the Group’s employment

Supphier payment policy

The Group’s policy 1s 10 setile terms of payment with suppliers when agreewng the terms of cach transaction, ensure
that supphers are made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms of payment Trade creditors of the
Group at 31 December 2013 were equivaient to 30 (2012 29) days’ purchases, based on the average daily amount
mvoiced by suppliers during the year

Charitable and pohtical contributions

During the year the Company and Group made donations to registered local and national charities of £4,000 (2012
£32,651} No pohtical contributions were made during the year (2012 £mil)
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Going concern

The Group delivered profit after tax of £4 9m for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012 £12 9m) The Group has
also increased uts net assets to £88 Im (2012 £86 8m) The Group s net debt balance decreased by £6 9m durning
2013 hughhighting the Group’s ability to manage 1ts working capital use and generate strong cash flows

The Board has approved a detailed budget for 2014, which indicates surplus cash generated from operations after
accounting for the Group’s forecast levels of capital expendiure In addition, the Group has access to 1ts current
£50m revolving facility, which 1s not due to expire untl January 2017 As at 31 December 2013, the Group had £24m
of available financing by which to finance both current operations and future growth This strong balance sheet
position provides a high level of confidence that the Group will be able to repay all liabtlities as they fall due during
2014, as well as funding the planned expansion in the store estate The Board 1s also confident of meeting all
covenant tests during the year

In considening the going concern basis of preparation longer term forecasts are also reviewed by the Board, with the
‘base case’ financial forecasts revealing no mnatlity to meet financial ¢ovenants or repay habilites Sensitivity
analysis under less favourable scenanos designed to test the pomnt at which the Group will erther have msufficient
headroom or breach financial covenants have also been prepared and reviewed The Board considers the selected
scenarios as remote, and 1s comfortable that mitigating strategies are available to the Group to offset hqudity
constramnts

We believe that the current economuc chimate should have no significant negative impact to our business model The
Group offering 1s principally through secured lending against pledges The Group policies on pawn lending remain
rigorous and prudent, such that the Group has very limited exposure to loss 1n the event of customers not redeeming
their pledges, due to the value of the pledge collateral held, principally being gold and precious stones The Group
has no reason to believe that the value will not be mamtamed in the near future Further details are provided n note
25

Based on the above considerations and after reviewing 1n detail FY 2014 and FY 2015 forecasts, the directors have
formed the view that the Group has adequate resources to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future and
has prepared the financial statements on this basis Principal nisks and uncertainties to the Group’s business are
discussed in more detail in the Strategic Report

Independent auditor and statement of provision of information to the independent auditor

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s
unaware, and

(2)  the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make hmself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006

by the Board of Directors
on behalf of the Board
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The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors 10 prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the group financial statements i accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation and have elected to prepare
the parent company financial statements in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not
approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In prepaning the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to

select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 18 tnappropriate to presume that the company
will continue 1n business

In prepanng the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requres that directors

properly select and apply accounting policies,

¢ present information, including accounting policies, m a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and
understandable mformation,

s provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements 1 IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial
positicn and financial performance, and

e make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on
the company’s website Legislation n the Untted Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissermination of financial
statements may differ from legislation n other junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

¢ the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings
included n the consolidation taken as a whole,

e the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the posinon of
the company and the undertakings included 1n the consolidation taken as a whole, together wath a descniption of
the principal nisks and uncertainties that they face, and

* the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the
mformation necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model and strategy

Fmance Director
S A Fenerty

26 February 2014
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We have audited the financial statements of H&T Group Plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 which comprise
of the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group
Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Changes i Equity and the related notes | to 32 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
apphied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibihty 1s to audit and
express an opion on the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reascnable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances
and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information n the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to 1dentify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit 1f we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimnion on financial statements
In our opinion
e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,
e the group financiai statements have been properly prepared i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,
¢ the financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the infermation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report i respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you 1f, n our opimion
= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

lan J Smuth (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditer
Crawley, United Kingdom

26 February 2014
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Note
Revenue 5,6
Cost of sales
Gross profit 6
Other direct expenses
Administrative expenses
Operating profit
Investment revenues 5,10
Finance costs 11
Movement in fair value of miterest rate swaps
Profit before taxation 7
Tax charge on profit 12
Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income
Earnings per share
From continuing operations
Basic 13
Diluted 13

All results denve from continuing operations

2013 2012
£000 £'000
99,275 129,696
(49,357) (67,413)
49918 62,283
(32,912) (33,435)
(9.,432) (10,763)
7,574 18,085

1 2
(842) (1,532)

- 418

6,733 16,973
(1,882) (4,077}
4,851 12,896
2013 2012
Pence Pence
13 44 3592
13 40 35352
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Employee
Share Benefit
Share premium Trustshares Retained

capital account reserve  earnings Total

Note £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000

At 1 January 2012 1,805 24,961 (25) 50,542 77,283

Profit for the financial year - - - 12,896 12,896

Total income for the financial year - - - 12,896 12,896

Issue of share capital 25 436 - - 461

Share option credit taken directly to equuity 27 - - - 416 416

Deferred tax on share options taken

directly to equity 23 - - - (350) (350}
Dividends paid 14 - - - (3,941) (3,941)
Employee benefit trust shares 26 - - - - -

At | January 2013 1,830 25,397 (25) 59,563 86,765

Profit for the financial year . - - 4,851 4,851

Total income for the financial year - - - 4,851 4,851

Issue of share capital 26 13 12 - - 25

Share option credit taken directly to equity 27 - - - 238 238
Dividends paid 14 - - - (3,738 (3,738)
Employee benefit trust shares 26 - - (13) - (13

At 31 December 2013 1,843 25,409 (38) 60,914 88,128
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At 31 December 2013
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Note £000 £7000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 17,738 17,681
Other intangible assets 16 1,400 1,181
Property, plant and equipment 17 12,322 13,679
31,460 32,541
Current assets
Inventones 19 29,748 26,233
Trade and other receivables 20 54,122 64,023
Deferred tax assets 23 724 723
Cash and cash equivalents 20 8,251 6,371
92 845 97.350
Total assets 124,305 129,891
Current liabihties
Borrowings 22 (3,000) (34,000)
Trade and other payables 21 (5,338) (6,426)
Current tax habilities 21 (1,076) (2,182)
9.414) (42,608)
[Net current assets 33,431 54,742 |
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 (25.605) -
Provisions 24 (1,158) (518)
(26,763) (518)
Total liabalities (36,177) (43,126)
Net assets £8,128 86,765
Equity
Share capital 26 1,843 1,830
Share premium account 25,409 25,397
Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve 26 (38) (25)
Retained earnings 60,914 59,563
Total equity 88,128 86,765

The financial statements of H & T Group plc, registered number 01588117, were approved by the board of

director:

nd authorised for 1ssue on 26 February 2014
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Net cash generated from operating activities
Investing activittes

Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Acquisition of trade and assets of businesses

Net cash used 1n investing activities

Financing activitics

Dividends paid

Net decrease 1n borrowings

Proceeds on 1ssue of shares

Loan to the Employee Benefit Trust for acquisition of own shares
Net cash absorbed by financing activities

Net increase i cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note
29

26

2013 2012
£2000 £:000
15,405 11,440
1 2
- 600
(2:434) (4,547)
- )
(2,366) (2,337)
(4,799) (6,284)
(3,738) (3,941)
(5,000) -
25 461
(13) -
(8,726) (3,480)
1,880 1,676
6,371 4,695
8,251 6,371
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1.

General information

H & T Group plc 1s a company incorporated 1n the United Kingdom under the Companies Acts The address
of the registered office 1s given on page 26 The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities
are set out i note 6 and 1in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive Officer’'s Review, the Finance
Director’s Review and the Directors’ Report

The financial statements are presented i pounds sterling because that 1s the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group operates

Changes in accounting policies

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted

Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets
Amendments to IAS | Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Dusclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (201 1)

IAS 27 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to [FRS 7

and 1AS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial habilities

No amendments to these financial statements have been made as a result of adopting new and revised
standards and interpretations

Standards and Interpretations in 1ssue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which
have not been applied in these financial statements were n 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had
not yet been adopted by the EU)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IAS 27 (amendments) Investment Entities

IAS 36 (amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

IAS 39 (amendments) Novation of Denivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations hsted above will have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Group 1n future periods

43




H&T Group ple

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with The AIM
Rules .

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain
finangial instruments

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company {its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries io bring the accounting
policies used nto line with these used by the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Gong concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements Further detail 1s contained in the Directors Report

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The
consideration for each acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of
assets given, liabiliies incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest 1n the fair value of the
identifiable assets and habilities of a subsidiary, or trade and assets previously operated through either sole
partnership in limited companies with no audited accounts at the date of acquisition Goodwill 1s mitially
recognised as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s
recogmised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and 1s not subsequently
reversed

CGU’s to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there 15 an indication that the umt may be impaired

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts subject to being tested for impairment annually as descnibed above
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Significant accounting pohicies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with a finite useful hife are carried at cost less amortisation less impairment losses
Intangible assets represent intangibles which have been separately 1dentified under IFRS 3 anising 1n business
combinations, or meet the recogntion criteria of [AS 38, “Intangible Assets”, being principally computer
software assets

Amorusation of intangible assets acquired n a business combination 1s calculated using the expected life of
the intangible assets acquired

Amortisation of other intangible assets (computer software) 15 calculated using the straight-hine method to
allocate the cost of the asset less 11s assessed realisable value over its estimated useful life (6 to 8 years)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value
Depreciation

Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and equipment, at rates calculated to wnite off the cost, less
estimated residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows

Short leasehold premises

- Leasehold improvements Shorter of 7 years or Iife of lease
Computer equipment

- Computer hardware 3 to 5 years
Fixtures and fittings 10 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment 1f events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end
Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value For stock acquired for retail sale the cost
represents the purchase price plus overheads directly related to bringing inventory to 1ts present location and
condition and 1s measured on a first in first out basis For stock arising from unredeemed pledges the cost
represents the amount originally loaned, plus overheads directly related to bringing inventory to its present
location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be mcurred 1n marketing, selling and distribution

Where necessary provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and damaged stocks
Financial assets

In accordance with 1AS 39, ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has classified
us financial assets as ‘loans and receivables’ and financial assets at ‘fair value through profit and loss’
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Loans and receivables
The principal financsal assets included in this measurement category are

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in the normal course of business Trade receivables
include certain amounts, namely pledge receivables and KwikLoan debtors which are interest bearing The
accrued interest arising on these interest bearing assets 1s included in prepayments and accrued income using
the effective interest method All other amounts which are not interest bearing are stated at their nominal
value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated urecoverable amounts, which are charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at hand and deposuts held with banks with original maturities of three
months or less

Financial assets at FVTPL
Only the Group's derivative financial instruments are recorded as financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gawn or loss recognised in profit or loss

Imparrment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date Financial assets are impaired where there 15 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred afler the imimal recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been reduced

Objective evidence of impairment could include

. significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, ot
. default on payments, or
. 1t becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certamn categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis

The carrying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance
account When a trade receivable 1s considered uncollectible, it 1s written off against the allowance account

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are immediately recognised in profit or loss

If, 1n a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss 15 reversed through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income to the extent that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date the impairment 1s reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financtal habilities and equity

Finaneial habiliies and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered 1nto

Equity instruments

An equity nstrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct 15sue costs

Financial liabiities

Fimancial habihties are classified as esther financial habilities ‘at FVTPL’ or “other financial habiliies’
Financial habilitigs at FVTPL

Only the Group’s derivative financial instruments are recorded as financial habilities at FVTPL

Financial habilities at FYTPL are stated at farr value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss The net gan or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial hability

Other financial habilities

Other financial hiabilities, including borrowings, are inimally measured at fair value, net of transaction costs
All other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defetred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported i the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of mcome or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group’s habihty for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 1n the computation of
taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liabiity method Deferred tax habilities are
generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent
that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be available agamst which deductible temporary differences can be
utthsed Such assects and habilities are not recognised 1f the temporary difference arises from the mitial
recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and habilities i a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 1s settled or
the asset 1s realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, except when 1t relates to 1tems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s
also dealt with in equity
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Sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax lrabiliies and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Leases

Leases taken by the Group are assessed individually as to whether they are finance leases or operating leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially ail the nisks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases Operating lease rental payments are recogmised as an expense n the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term  The benefit of lease
incentives 1s spread over the term of the lease

The Group currently has no finance leases

Provisions

A prowvision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s material

All the Group’s premises are leased under operating leases The majority of the leases nclude end of lease
rectification clauses which 1mpose certain requirements on the Group to complete repairs and maintenance, or
re-decoratton activities 1f required The Group prowvides for both rectification costs and repaiwrs and
maintenance obligations Rectification costs are provided for on signing the lease and repairs are provided as
1t becomes aware of any significant amounts that will be required

Share capital and share premimum account

There 1s one class of shares When new shares are 1ssued, they are recorded 1n share capital at theur par value
The excess of the 1ssue price over the par value 1s recorded 1n the share premium account

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares are recorded in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, to the share premium account

Employee Benefit Trust Shares

Under the terms of the Group Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’) for the directors, the parent Company issued
certain shares to an Employec Benefit Trust, paid for through the issuance of a loan to the Trust from the
Group The award of shares under the LTIP 1s conditional upon certain vesting criteria, as outlined n note 27
The fair value of the awards made 1s measured under the policy disclosed below for Share Options

The Group presents the conditional shares as an adjustment to own equity at the balance sheet date through the
Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve, until the point that the shares are awarded, and cease to be conditional
awards of shares
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recervable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services and interest income provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured The following specific recogmtion criteria must also be met before
revenue 1s recognised

» Retail comprises revenue from retail jewellery sales, with stock sourced from unredeemed pawn loans,
newly purchased stock and stock refurbished from the Group’s gold purchasing operation All revenue
1s recognised at the point of sale,

» Pawnbroking, or Pawn Service Charge (PSC), comprises interest on pledge book loans, plus auction
profit and loss, less any auction commissions payable and less surplus payable to the customer Interest
receivable on loans 1s recognised as interest accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the

-effective interest rate apphcable, which 1s the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount,

¢ Pawnbroking Scrap and Gold Purchasing comprises proceeds from gold scrap sales and 15 recognised
on full receipt of sale proceeds,

¢ Cheque cashing comprises revenues from third party Cheque Cashing and Pay Day Advances The
commission recetvable on cheque cashing 1s recogmised at the time of the transaction, and

e Other financial services comprise revenues from other unsecured lending, foreign exchange income,
prepaid card and other income Interest receivable on unsecured loans 1s recognised as interest accrues
by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carryihg amount  Any other revenues are recognised on an accruals basis

The Group recognises interest income arising on secured and unsecured lending within trading revenue rather
than investment revenue on the basis that this represents mast accurately the business activities of the Group

The Group recognises revenue and bad debt expenses (both impairments and movements on aliowance
accounts) on pawnbroking, cheque cashing and other financial services on a portfolio approach The Group
considers that the bad debts arising on the loans and receivables balances are a direct function of the revenue
earned due to the nature of the activities, and accordingly records the net amount of interest or commissions
due and bad debt expenses within revenue

Gross profit

Gross profit s stated after charging bad debt expenses and the direct costs of stock ttems sold or scrapped in
the period

Other direct expenses

Other direct expenses comprise all expenses associated with the operation of the various shops and collection
centre of the Group, including premises expenses, such as rent, rates, utilities and insurance, all staff costs and
staff related costs for the relevant employees

QOperating profit

Operating profit 1s stated before investment income, finance costs, other gains and movement 1n the fair value
of interest rate swaps
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

EBITDA

EBITDA s defined as Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation It 1s calculated by
adding back depreciation and amortisation to the operating profit as follows

2013 2012

£2000 £000

Operating profit 7,574 18,085
Depreciation and amortisation 3,604 3,218
Impairment 517 -
EBITDA 11,695 21,303

The Board consitders EBITDA as a key measure of the Group’s financial performance

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution penston scheme which is contracted mnto the State Scheme The
amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n respect of pension costs and other
post-retirement benefits 1s the contributions payable 1n the year Differences between contributions payable n
the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments 1n the balance sheet

Employee share incentive plans

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certamm employees (including directors) These
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by use of a Black-Scholes model or a Stochastic model
depending on the vesting conditions attached to each scheme This fair value cost of equity-settted awards 1s
recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any non market-based vesting conditions The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations A corresponding credit s recorded in equity

No cost 1s recogmsed for awards that do not ultimately vest

Dividends

Dividends are provaded for in the period in which they become a binding habihity on the Company
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described 1n note 3, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recogmised 1n the period in which the estmate 15 revised 1f the revision affects only that period,
or 1n the peniod of the revision and future periods 1f the revision affects both current and future peniods

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those mvolving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made 1n the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements

Revenue recognition

Interest receivable on pawnbroking loans 1s recognised as interest accrues by reference to the percentage of the
pawn loans that are estimated to be redeemed and the effective interest rate apphcable The effective interest
rate 15 the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount The estimated future cash receipts are based on the historical cash receipts
experience (the “Pledge Redemption”) of the business which vary from month to month The Group monitors
the Pledge Redemption on a monthly basis

The Group does not recognise interest income on the pawn loans that are not expected to be redeemed The
Group recognises mcome on these loans when the related collateral that supports the loan 1s disposed of,
through either the scrap or retail operations of the Group The Group 1s of the opimon that the revenue earned
on the unredeemed pledges 15 only realised from the Group perspective at the point at which the stock, or
scrap ttem that the Group obtains from the pledge collateral 1s disposed of In arriving at this treatment, the
Group also considers that the transfer value from pawn loans to mventory of the unredeemed pledge collateral
cannot exceed the cost to the Group of the inventory item which 1s represented by the underlymg loan amount
provided on the unredeemed pledge item

Inventories

The majority of the inventory balance 1s obtamed as a result of default by pawn loan customers The mventory
15 stated at cost to the Group, being the amount 1nitially lent on the pawn loan, plus overheads directly related
to bringing the nventory to its present location and condition As stated above, the Group does not allocate
any interest that would have been earned on the pawn loans to the cost of inventory Accordingly, the profit
that arises on the subsequent disposal of the inventory, through erther retail or scrap, includes an element
which relates to the appropration by the Group of collaterals supporting pawn loans that have a higher market
value, than the pawn loan amount

Dilapidations provisions

All the Group's premises are leased under operating leases The majority of the leases include end of lease
rectification clauses which impose certain requirements on the Group to complete repairs and maintenance, or
re-decoration activities 1f requred The Group provides for both rectification costs and repairs and
maintenance obligations Rectification costs are provided for on signing the lease and repairs are provided as
it becomes aware of any significant amounts that will be required The Group does not provide for amounts
where the potential exposure cannot be reliably measured and accordingly does not anticipate potential repairs
and maintenance on the portfolio of stores Additionally, the Group maintains the stores to a high standard and
completes any necessary repairs and maintenance on a timely basis, addressing any events that require
expendsture throughout the lease period as and when required Such costs are expensed as incurred
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habilities within the next financial year, are discussed below

Pawnbroking loans interest accrual esthmation

The Group recognises interest on pawnbroking loans as disclosed 1n the Critical judgements i applying the
Group’s accounting policies section above The pawn loans interest accrual (‘pledge accrual’) 1s matenal to
the financial statements and 1s dependant on the estimate that the Group makes of the expected level of
redeemed pawn loans The Group estimates the expected redemptions based on the historical redemption rates
achieved There s a risk that the actual redemption rate may vary sigmificantly from the historical rate used to
estimate the pledge accrual at the balance sheet date The Directors assess the pledge accrual estumate made at
the pror balance sheet date annually to determine if the actual redemption differs sigmficantly to the previous
estimate No significant differences were noted for 2012 or 2013 The sensitivity of the pledge accrual to
reasonable changes 1n the redemption rate 1s shown 1n note 25

Impairment of geodwill and other intangibles

Determining whether goodwill 15 impaired requires an estumation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated The value 1n use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate 1n order to
calculate present value The review 1s conducted annually, in the final quarter of the year The impairment
review 1s conducted at the level of each cash generating unit, which for acquisitions represents the specific
store or stores acquired

52




H&T Group plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

4,

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill (continued)

There was an impairment loss of £517,000, of which £324,000 related to goodwill, recorded 1n the current
year (none n preceding years) The Impairment loss relates to four acquisitions, two acquisitions were made 1n
2012 and twe mn 2013 The principal assumptions apphed by management in arriving at the value 1n use of
each cash generating unit are as follows

1 The Group prepares cash flow forecasis over a five year penod for each cash generating unit, as
disclosed 1n note 15 The year one cash flows are derived from the most recent financial budget with
average like-for-like assumptions of 3% decline in retail, pawnbroking loans are constant, and a 30%
dechine 1n gold purchasing volumes in the first year A constant gold prnice of £760 per troy ounce 15
assumed Cash flows in subsequent years reflect management’s estimate of decline in the revenue in the
relevant cash generating unit, based on the specific charactenistics of the store and the stage of
development of the core product offerings Assumptions for years 2 — 5 include no annual growth mn the
pawn service charge, a 3% annual reduction in retail profits and 2% increase in cost A terminal value
1s then calculated for periods thereafter

2 The Group has discounted the cash flows at a pre-tax, risk adjusted rate of 13 1%

3 The recoverable amount of four cash generating units was estimated to be less that its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the cash generating units was reduced to recoverable amount The impairment
loss of £517,000 was recognised immediately m Profit and Loss

While the impairment review has been conducted based on the best available estimates at the impairment
review date, the Group notes that actual events may vary from management expectation

Fair value of derivatives

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted 1n an active market Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied For
derivative financial imstruments, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific
features of the instrument This requires estimation of the future interest rates, and also the appropriate
discount rate

Trade receivables provisioning
Trade and other receivables are stated at their nominal amount less expected impaument losses

The impairment losses on the pledge book only relate to pledges seized by the police, shrinkage and our
estimate of losses on pledges where the loan value exceeds the current market value The pledge book items
seized by the police are impaired on an tem by itemn basts since the Group tracks the status of each pledge
individually The shrinkage provision 1s based on an estimate of the pledge book missing at the reporting date
using historical shrinkage experience The provision for pledges where loan value exceeds the current market
value 15 calculated on an item by ifem basis with an estimate used for the propertion of those items which will
ultimately be disposed of through pawnbroking scrap

No other impairment losses are provided on the pledge book since the value of the collaterals 1s greater than
the pledge book nominal value

The impairment of Pay Day Advance loans 1s subject to a portfolio approach, based on an estumate of
historical bad debt experience and expected recoveries

The impairment of KwikLoan loans 1s subject to tndividual assessment based on the number of payments
missed If one payment has been missed, a third of the remaining balance 1s impaired, 1f two payments have
been missed, two-third of the remaining balance is impaired and 1f three payments or more have been missed,
the whole remaining balance 15 impaired
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

With respect to all provisions that are based on estimates, there 15 a risk that actual losses incurred will vary
sigmificantly from management expectation at the balance sheet date, if historical loss rates are not a good
mndicator of the actual credit risk profile of the year end receivables

For further details on the provisions and impairment losses, refer to note 25, which show the amounts recorded
m the period and the sensitivity at the balance sheet date to changes n the key assumptions with respect to
impairment losses

Inventories provisioning

Where necessary provision 1s made for obsolete, slow moving and damaged stock or stock shrinkage The
provision for obsolete, slow moving and damaged stock represents the difference between the cost of the stock
and 1ts market value The stock shrinkage provision 1s based on an estimate of the inventory missing at the
reporting date using historical shrinkage experience For further details on the provisions for inventory, refer
to note 7

Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue 1s as follows:

2013 2012
£000 £000
Sales of goods
Gold purchastng, retail, pawnbroking scrap, 65,893 96,718
Interest / commission earned
Pawnbroking, cheque cashing and other financial services 33,382 32,978
Group revenue 99275 129,696
Investment revenues 1 2
Total Group revenue 99,276 129,698
Further analysis of revenue by segment 1s shown 1n note 6
Included 1n the above revenues are the following items of income and gans:
2013 2012
£000 £000
Income
Interest earned on financial assets not designated at fair value 28,812 28,930
Fees earned on financial assets not designated at fawr value 3,767 5,968
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Business and geographical segments
Business segments

For reporting purposes, the Group 1s currently orgamised into six segments — Pawnbroking, Gold purchasing,
Retail, Scrap, Cheque cashing and Other financial services The principal activities by segment are as follows

Pawnbroking:

Pawnbroking 1s a loan secured against a collateral (the pledge) In the case of the Group over 99% of the
collateral agamst which amounts are lent comprises precious metals {predommantly gold), diamonds and
watches The pawnbroking contract 15 a six month credit agreement bearing a monthly interest rate of between
2% and 9 99% The contract 1s governed by the terms of the Consumer Credit Act 2008 (previously the
Consumer Credit Act 2002) If the customer does not redeem the goods by repaying the secured loan before
the end of the contract, the Group is required to dispose of the goods either through public auctions 1f the
value of the pledge 15 over £75 {(disposal proceeds being reported n this segment) or, 1f the value of the pledge
1s £75 or under, through public auctions or the Retail or Pawnbroking Scrap activities of the Group

Gold Purchasing:

Jewellery 1s bought direct from customers through ali of the Group’s stores The transaction 1s simple with the
store or umit agreeing a price with the customer and purchasing the goods for cash on the spot Gold
Purchasing revenues comprise proceeds from scrap sales on goods sourced from the Group’s purchasing
operations

Retail:

The Group's retail proposition 1s primarily gold and jewellery and the majority of the retail sales are forfeited
items from the pawnbroking pledge book or refurbished items from the Group’s gold purchasing operations
The retail offering 1s complemented with a small amount of new or second hand jewellery purchased from
third parties by the Group

Pawnbroking Scrap.

Pawnbroking Scrap comprises all other proceeds from gold scrap sales other than those reported within Gold
Purchasing The items are either damaged beyond repair, are slow moving or surplus to the Group’s
requirements, and are smelted and sold at the current gold spot price less a small commussion

Cheque cashing:

This segment comprises two products

¢ Third Party Cheque Encashment which s the provision of cash in exchange for a cheque payable to
our customer for a commission fee based on the face value of the cheque

e Pay Day Advance 1s a short term cash loan repayable within 30 days, offered both n stores and
on-line Customers can secure a loan of up to £750 and agree a date for repayment of loan and
associated nterest This product was substannally withdrawn during 2013 and will cease during
2014

Both products are subject to bad debt risk which 1s reflected in the commussions and fees applied
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Business and geographical segments {continued)
Business segments (continued)

Other financial services’

This segment comprises

s  Unsecured personal loans (“KwikLoan™) of up to £1000 which are repayable over a period up to 2
years The Group earns approximately £300 gross interest on a £500 loan over 12 months

»  The Prepaid debit card product where the Group earns a comtmssion when selling the card or when
the customer 1s topping up their card

¢ The foreign exchange currency (Euro and US Dollar) service where the Group earns a commission )
when selling or buying foreign currencies

¢ Western Union commission earned on the Group’s money transfer service

Only the KwikLoan product 1s subject to bad debt risk which 1s reflected m the interest rate offered
Further details on each activity are included in the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 13 to 16

Segment information about these businesses 1s presented below

Pawn- Other Consohidated

Pawn- Gold broking Cheque Financial Year

broking Purchasing Retail Scrap cashing services ended

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

2013 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000 £°000
Revenue

External sales 28,797 24,487 24,928 16,478 3,307 1,278 99,275

Total revenue 28,797 24,487 24,928 16,478 3,307 1,278 99,275

Segment result — gross profit 28,797 4,784 9,922 1,830 3,307 1,278 49,918

Pawn- Other Consoldated

Pawn- Gold broking Cheque Fmanaial Year

broking Purchasing Retail Scrap cashing services ended

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

2012 £'000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £'000
Revenue

External sales 28,415 51,774 20,149 24,795 3,746 817 129,696

Total revenue 28,415 51,7714 20,149 24,795 3,746 817 129,696

Segment result — gross profit 28,413 12,045 5,881 7,379 3,746 817 62,281

As disclosed n note 3, Gross profit 1s stated after charging bad debt expenses and the direct costs of stock
ttems sold or scrapped in the period Other operating expenses of the stores are included n other direct
expenses The Group 1s unable to meanngfully allocate the other direct expenses of operating the stores
between segments as the activities are conducted from the same stores, utilising the same assets and staff The
Group 1s also unable to meaningfully allocate Group administrative expenses, or financing costs or income
between the segments Accordingly, the Group is unable to meaningfully disclose an allocation of items
included 1n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income below Gross profit, which represents the
reported segment results

The Group does not apply any inter-segment charges when items are transferred between the pawnbroking
activity and the retail or scrap activities
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6. Business and geographical segments (continued)
Pawn- Other  Unallocated
Pawn- Gold broking Cheque Financial assets/
brekang Purchasing Retail Scrap cashing services  (habilities)  Consohdated
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
2013 £°000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000
Other information
Capital additions (*} 3,229 3,229
Depreciation and amorusation (*) 3,797 3,767
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 49824 1,900 26,582 1,266 33 1,953 81,558
Unallocated corporate assets 39,749 39,749
Consolidated total assets 124,305
Liablities .
Segment liabilities - - {478) - (29) (23) (530)
Unatlocated corporate liabilities (35,647) (35,647)
Consolidated total habilities (36,177
Pawn- Other  Unallocated
Pawn- Gold broking Cheque Financial assets/
broking Purchasing Retail Scrap cashing services  (habihties) Consolidated
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
2012 £000 £000 £000 £900 £°000 £000 £000 £'000
Other information
Capital addiions (*) - - - - - - 5,654 5,654
Depreciation and amortisation (*) - - - - - - 3,218 3,218
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 58272 1,472 23,779 981 1,168 1,229 86,901
Unallocated corporate assets 42,990 42,990
Consoludated total assets 129,891
Liabilities
Segment labilities - - (459) - (50) (29) (538)
Unallocated corporate Liabilities (42,588) (42,588)
Consolrdated 10tal liabilities (43,126)
—_———

(*) The Group cannot meamngfully allocate this information by segment due to the fact that all the
segments operate from the same stores and the assets in use are common to all segments
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6. Business and geographical segments (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located entirely in the United Kingdom and all sales are within the United
Kingdom Accordingly, no further geographical segments analysis 15 presented

Major customers

Included in revenues ansing from Gold Purchasing and Pawnbroking Scrap segments are revenues from the
Group’s largest customer of £29,531,000 (2012 - £52,068,000) and from its second largest customer of
£5,720,000 (2012 - £11,046,000) These customers are bullion houses involved in the processing of the
Group’s scrap gold

-

7. Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging- 2013 2012
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment reported within
- Other direct expenses 3,101 2,866
- Administrative expenses 84 86
Amortisation of intangible assets (reported within Other direct expenses) 419 266
[mparment 517 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 187 89
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 48,360 66,839
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 997 573
Staff costs (see note 9) 20,442 22,448
Imparrment loss recognised on pawnbroking financial assets (*) 514 291
Provision recognised on pawnbroking financial assets (*) 545 99
{mpairment loss recognised on cheque cashing financial assets (*) 488 2,329
Prc;wswn (released) / recognised on cheque cashing financial assets (*) (665) 50
Impaurment loss recognised on other financial services financial assets (*) 836 460
Provision recognised / (released) on other financial services financial assets (*) 256 (93)

(*)  As discussed 1n note 3, due to the portfolio approach adopted for recognising revenue, these amounts
are recorded against revenue from the related segment to present net revenues as shown n notes 5 and 6

Although the Group has wnitten off, or provided for some of the financial assets m the current and previous
periods, the Group continues to seek recovery of these assets For further analysis on the movements n
allowances, and amounts written off, see note 25
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8. Auditor’s remuneration

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration, exclusive of VAT, 1s as follows
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s
annual accounts

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services to the Group
- The audit of the Company’s subsidianies pursuant to legislation

Total audit fees
- Tax services
- Other services

Total non-audit fees

2013 2012
£000 £'000
40 38
42 44
82 82
10 10
10 10

The Company and Group audit fees are borne by a subsidiary undertaking, Harvey & Thompson Limited

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to
be disclosed because the consohdated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a

consolhidated basis

There were no fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates 1n respect of associated pension

schemes
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9. Information regarding directors and employees

Non-executive directors’ emoluments

3 (2012 - 3) non-executive directors receive payments for services rendered to the H & T Group plc group

Their emoluments are included 1n the analysis below

Directors’ emoluments

Aggregate emoluments
Company pension contributions to money purchase schemes

2013 2012
£000 £000
726 961
55 55
781 1,016

All executive directors during the year (2012 - ail) participated in Harvey & Thompson Limited’s money
purchase pension scheme In addition, £209,000 (2012 - £223,000) was charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income n respect of the fair value of the share options and condttional shares
granted 10 the directors under the different schemes None (2012 One) of the directors exercised options

aver shares 1n the Company n the year

Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments
Company pension contributions to money purchase scheme

2013
£000

252
24

2012
£000

349
24

In addition, £104,000 (2012 - £97,000) was charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
in respect of the fair value of the share options and conditional shares granted under the different schemes

Average number of persons employed {including directors)
Branches
Administration

Staff costs during the year (including directors)
Wages and salaries

Share option compensatton expense (note 27)
Social security costs

Other pension costs

2013 2012
No. No
914 1,003
107 104

1,021 1,107

2013 2012

£'000 £2000
18,317 19,837
238 431

1,634 1,932

253 248
20,442 22,448

All directors and employees are remunerated through a subsidiary group company, Harvey & Thompson

Limited in both the current and preceding financial year
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10, Investment revenues

2013 2012
£000 £°000
Interest revenue:
Bank deposits 1 2
Investment revenues earned on financial assets (analysed by category of asset) 15 as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £°000
Loans and receivables (including cash and bank balances) 1 2

Interest revenue recognised on pawnbroking and other financial services 1s reported within turnover for the

reasons discussed 1n note 3

11. Finance costs

2013 2012
£000 £°000
Interest on bank loans 700 1,530
Other interest 2 2
Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs 140 -
Total interest expense 842 1,532

61




H&T Group ple

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

12. Tax charge on profit

a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax

United Kingdom corporation tax charge at 23 25% (2012 — 24 5%)
based on the profit for the year

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Timung differences, origination and reversal

Effects of change in tax rate

Adjustments 1n respect of prior years

Total deferred tax (note 23)

Tax charge on profit

(b}  Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

2013 2012
£000 £000
2,055 4,030
(172) a7
1,883 4,013
(143) (1)
69 65
73 30
(N 64
1,882 4,077

The tax assessed for the year 15 higher than that resulting from applying a blended standard rate of
corporation tax 1n the UK of 23 25% (2012 — 24 5%) The differences are explained below

Profit before taxation

Tax charge on profit at standard rate

Effects of
Disallowed expenses and non-taxable income
Non-qualifying depreciation
Effect of change in tax rate
Movement n short term timing differences
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods

Total actual amount of tax charge

2013 2012
£000 £'000
6,733 16,973
1,565 4,159

125 (192)
89 32
69 65

133 .

(99) 13

1,882 4,077

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement and i accordance with 1AS 12, the excess of
current and deferred tax over and above the relative related cumulative remuneration expense under IFRS 2
has been recognised directly in equity This amounted to a charge to equity n the current period of £NIL

{2012 charge to equity of £350,000)
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13.

14

Earnings per share

Basic eamngs per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares n 1ssue during the year

For diluted earmnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares

With respect to the Group these represent share options

and conditional shares granted to employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average market price of

the Company's ordmary shares during the year

Reconciliations of the earnings per ordinary share and weighted average number of shares used in the

calculations are set cut below

Year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December 2012

Weighted Weighted
average Per-share average Per-share
Earnings number of amount Farnings numberof amount
£000 shares pence £'000 shares pence
Earmings per share basic 4,851 36,085,485 13 44 12,896 35,897,434 3592
Effect of dilutive securities
Options and conditional shares 125,272 (0 04) - 413,670 (040}
Earnings per share diluted 4,851 36,210,757 13 40 12,896 36,311,104 35 52
Dividends
2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Fina! dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 8 05 pence
(2011 — 7 O0p) per share 2,968 2,552
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2 | pence
(2012 — 3 80p) per share 770 1,389
3,738 3,941
Amounts proposed and not recognised:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2 7p
(2012 -8 05p) per share 995 2,945

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and
accordingly, has not been included as a hability 1n these financial statements
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15.

Goodwill

Goodwill Goodwill
arising on  arising on

purchase trade

of and asset Total

subsidiaries purchases Goodwill

£°000 £°000 £'000

Cost and carrying amount

At 1 January 2013 14,133 3,548 17,681

Recognised on acquisition of trade and assets - 381 381
Impairment - (324) (324)

At 31 December 2013 14,133 3,605 17,738

At 31 December 2013, before impairment testing, goodwill of £1,189,000 was allocated to the stores acquired
in 2012 and 2013 These CGUs have been impacted by the fall in gold price and increased competition in the
year and as a result the Group has recognised an impamrment loss of £324,000 against goodwll, £33,000
agamst other intangible assets and £160,000 against property, plant and equipment

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combimation 1s allocated as follows

2013 2012

£°000 £°000

Harvey & Thompson Limited 14,133 14,133
Stores acquired mn 2005 213 213
Stores acquired 1n 2006 553 553
Stores acquired n 2007 1,516 1,516
Stores acquired m 2008 391 391
Stores acquired n 2010 19 19
Stores acquired 1n 2011 48 48
Stores acquired 1n 2012 710 808
Stores acquired in 2013 155 -
17,738 17,681

The Group considers that the CGUs have indefimte useful lives as the Group is a significant operator in a
well-established business together with the proven and long term demand for the Group’s services

The Harvey & Thompson Lid CGU was ¢reated when H & T Group plc acquired Harvey & Thompson
Limited 1n September 2004 Management 1s unable to allocate this goodwill by store and accordingly, tests
this for impairment at the subsidhary entity level All assets acquired after September 2004 are reviewed for
impamrment at the related store level The stores are grouped for financial reporting purposes by year of
acqusition to faciiate presentation and comparability on a year by year basis Additionally, store
performance 1s momtored by management based on the year of acquisition as the historic performance of an
individual store 1s lnked to its acqusition date This approach 1s reflected m the way management has
presented the above CGUs

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently 1f there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired The impairment review was conducted as described in note 4
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16.

Other intangible assets

Cost
At t January 2012
Additions

At 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2013

Amortisation
At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year

At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Impairment

At 31 December 2013

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

Customer
relation-
Software ships Total
£2000 £'000 £000
1,675 1,175 2,850
2 598 600
1,677 1,773 3,450
- 673 673
@ - (2)
1,675 2,446 4,121
1,275 728 2,003
67 199 266
1,342 927 2,269
68 351 419
- 33 33
1,410 1,311 2,721
265 1,135 1,400
335 846 1,181

The customer relationships intangible assets arise from the acquisition of trade and assets of sole partnerships
or hmited compames with no audited accounts and reflect the repeat busimess associated with the
pawnbroking and pay day advance industry from existing customers at the acquisition date of the relevant

assets

The ameortisation period for customer relationship intangible assets i1s between 6 and 8 years and the
amortisaiion period for software intangible assets 1s 7 years These amortisation periods reflect the directors’
best estimate of the estimated useful economic lives of these intangible assets
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17.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals

At 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
At | January 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment

At 31 December 2013

Carrymg amount
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

Short Long Fixtures
leasehold  leasehold  Computer and
premises premises equipment fittings Total
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000
20,526 230 3,638 3,846 28,240
3,187 88 360 615 4,250
(1,691) (72) (28) (147) (1,938)
22,022 246 3,970 4,314 30,552
1,768 73 112 222 2,175
(492) (108) (185) (70) (855)
23,298 211 3,897 4,466 31,872
9,924 192 2,822 2,232 15,170
2,231 14 378 329 2,952
(1,030) (63) (26) (130) (1,249)
11,125 143 3,174 2,431 16,873
2,456 22 338 369 3,185
(366) (99) (143) (60) (668)
160 - - - 160
13,375 66 3,369 2,740 19,550
9,923 145 528 1,726 12,322
10,897 103 796 1,883 13,679

Capital commitments for tangible and mtangible assets are disclosed in note 31
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18.

19,

20,

Subsidiaries

A list of the significant investments m subsidiaries, mcluding the name, country of incorporation and
proportion of ownership interest 1s given in note C to the Company’s separate financial statements

Inventories
2013 2012
£°000 £000
Retail and scrap stock 29,748 26,233

Of the retail and scrap stock approximately 99% represents gold, jewellery and watch items The remaining
balance 15 miscellaneous 1items (mostly electrical goods and art pieces) which were previously held as pledge
collaterals and subsequently forferted

Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
£7000 £000
Trade receivables 45,118 53,651
Other debtors 211 1,028
Pledge accrued income 6,750 7,033
Prepayments and other accrued mcome 2,043 2,311
54,122 64,023

Trade and other recervables are disclosed net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts

Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 8,251 6,371

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less

Further details on financial nstruments, including the associated risks to the Group and allowances for bad
and doubtful debts and fawr values, 1s provided 1n note 25
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21,

22.

Trade and other payables

Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security costs
Accruals and deferred income

2013 2012
£000 £000
1,092 1,868

504 545
3,742 4,013
5,338 6,426

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases 15 30 days (2012 — 29 days) For most suppliers no
interest 1s charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice Thereafter, interest
15 charged on the outstanding balances at various mterest rates The Group has financial nsk management

policies 1n place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe

Corporation tax

Borrowings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts

Total borrowings due for settlement within one year
Long term portion of bank loan
Unamortised 1ssue costs

Amount due for settlement after more than one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
1,076 2,182
2013 2012
£000 £'000
3,000 34,000
3,000 34,000

26,000 -

(395) -

25,605 -
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22.

Borrowings (continued)

The Group entered into a new four year Credit Agreement with Lloyds TSB Bank plc on 30 January 2013
This facihty allowed for maximum borrowings of £50m, with a margin of between 125% and 2 25%
dependent on leverage ratios

The key terms of the new facility are

Key Term Description

Total Facility Size £50m

Termination Date 30 January 2017

Utilisation The facility 1s available to be drawn down to the full £50m so long as the

Company remains comphant with leverage and interest cover ratios as
stiputated in the Credit Agreement

Margin The facihty has an interest calculation of LIBOR plus a margin of between
1 25% and 2 25%, dependent on ratios as stipulated 1n the Credit Agreement

Interest Payable Interest due on the loans 1s payable at each interest period end As at
31 January 2013, the interest period was | month
Interest amounts outstanding at the year end are tncluded n accruals

Fixed Repayments No capital repayments prior to termination date

Deferred debt 1ssue costs

On commencement of the loan agreement £535,000 of debt 1ssue costs were capitalised, of these £140,000
have been amortised through the income statement 1n the current year (2012 £nil)

Security
The facihity 1s secured by a fixed and floating charge over various assets of the Group
Undrawn borrewing facilities

At 31 December 2013, the Company had available £24,000,000 (2012 £16,000,000) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met
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23.

Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and {assets) recognised by the Group and movements

thereon during the current and prior year

Fixed Hold over Shortterm Share Derivative
assets capital timing based financial
differences gamn  differences payment instruments Total
£°000 £000 £000 £7000 £°000 £000
At | January 2012 144 171 (763) (584) (105) (1,137}
Prior year adjustment 25 - 5 - - 30
(Credit) / charge to income (84) (14) 106 (79 105 34
Credit to equity - - - 350 - 350
At | January 2013 85 157 (652) (313) - (723)
Prior year adjustment 73 - - - - 73
(Credit) / charge to imcome (188) (15) (51) 180 (74)
Debit to equity - - - - - -
As 31 December 2013 (30) 142 (703) (133) - (724)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities all relate to the same tax jurisdiction and taxable entities, and are expected
to reverse over the same time periods Accordingly, these have been offset in the balance sheet

The Finance Act 2013, which provides for a reductions 1n the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21%
effective from 1 April 2014 and to 20% effective from 1 Apnl 2015, was substantively enacted on 2 July
2013 These rate reductions have been reflected 1n the calculation of deferred tax at the balance sheet date
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24. Provisions

At | January 2013
Additional provision
Provision utilised / released in the year

At 31 December 2013

Dilapidation
provision
£000

518
640

1,158

The dilapidation provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s lhiability to repair and
maintain certain of the properties contracted under operating lease agreements At the reporting date no
demand to enforce the dilapidation contractual obligations has been made by the related property landlords
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25,

Financial mmstruments

The Group’s financial assets and hatulities, as defined under IAS 39, and their esumated fair values are as

follows

At 31 December 2013

Financial assets

Pawnbroking trade recervables

Cheque cashing trade receivables

Other financial services trade recervables
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings due within one year
Borrowings due after one year

Net financial (liabilities) / assets

At 31 December 2012

Financial assets

Pawnbroking trade recetvables

Cheque cashing trade receivables

Other financial services trade receivables
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalenis

Financial babilities
Trade and other payables

Borrowings due within one year

Net financial (liabilities) / assets

Fair value Finanaal
through Loans liabilities at Book Fair
profit and and amortised Value value
loss receivables cost total total
£000 £7000 £7000 £000 £000
- 49,824 - 49,824 55,811
- 33 - 33 33
- 1,953 - 1,953 1,953
- 269 - 269 269
- 8,251 - 8,251 8,251
- - (4,632) (4,632) (4,632)
- - (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)
- - (25,605) (25,605)  (25,605)
- 60,330 (33,237 27,093 33,080
Fair value Financial
through Loans habilities at Book Fair
profit and and amortised Value value
loss receivables cost total total
£000 £°000 £°000 £7000 £2000
- 58,272 - 58,272 62,355
- 1,168 - 1,168 1,168
- 1,229 - £,229 1,229
- 1,043 - 1,043 1,043
- 6,371 - 6,371 6,371
- - (4.666) (4.666) {4 666)
- - (34,000) (34,000)  (34,000)
- 68,083 (38 666) 29417 33,500
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25,

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value

The assumptions used by the Group to estimate the current fair values are summarised below

(1) For trade recervables relating to Pawnbroking, the fair value has been calculated by adding
» The principal outstanding on pawn loans,
s The mterest receivable accrued using the effective interest rate method, and
e Assumed scrap profits on the proportion of the Group’s pledge book that 1s not expected to be
redeemed, 1 ¢ those loans upon which the Group does not recognise nterest due to the uncertainty
of recovery

{n) Other trade receivables and other assets are considered to have fair values which are the same as their
book values due to the short period over which they will be recovered Book values for both cheque
cashing and financial services trade receivables are calculated net of provisions, and hence represent
the Group’s best estimate of recovery values based upon recent debt collections experience

(m) Cash and cash equivalents are all held on interest bearing bank accounts are considered to have a fair
value the same as their book value

(v} For borrowings and trade and other payables, the book value approximates to fair value because of
their short maturities and interest rates where applicable None of the trade or other payables are
mterest bearing The borrowings are all held at floating interest rates which approximate market rates,
and accordingly, the book value and fair value are the same

The fair value of the pawnbroking trade receivables 15 determined using a model where the inputs are derived
from historical trends momitored by the group This valuation therefore falls within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy in 1AS 39 The fair value of all other financial instruments 1s equivalent to their book value due to
their short maturities

Financial risks

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the financial mstruments held The principal
nisks include credit risk on financial assets, and hquidity and interest rate risk on financial hability borrowings
The key nisks are analysed below

Credit nsk
Pawnbroking trade receivables

The Group 1s exposed to credit risk through customers defaulting on their loans The key mitigant to this nisk
15 the requirement for the borrower to provide collateral (the pledge) in entering a pawnbroking contract The
collateral acts to mimmise credit risk as a customer’s pledge becomes the property of the pawnbroker on
default of the loan

In addition to holding collateral, the Group further mitigates credit rnisk by
1) Applying strict lending critena to all pawn loans

Pledges are nigorously tested and appropriately valued In all cases where the Group lending policy 15 applied,
the value of the pledge items s 1n excess of the pawn loan

The Group estimate that the current fair value of the collateral 1s equal to the current book vatue In 2012 the
fair value exceeded the book value due to the higher profits available on sales of pawnbroking scrap resulting
mn a higher rate of interest recovery
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25

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

Pawnbroking trade recervables (confinued)
11) Seeking to improve redemption ratios

For existing customets, loan history and repayment profiles are factored into the loan making decision The
Group has a high customer retention ratio and all customers are offered high customer service levels

Given the current price of gold, a fall in redemption ratios 1s forecast to result in higher scrap profits more
than offsetting the lost interest received A 2% decrease / increase in the Group’s redemption ratio 1s
estimated to impact the pre-tax profit by £136,000 / (£136,000) This does not account for lost repeat business
however, and as such the Group sees more value in retaining a hgh redemption ratio

Additionally, the Group 15 exposed to risk in recovery of the loan amounts, which 1s considered to be similar
to credit nisk, due to

()] assets being pledged as security agamst loans, which are subsequently seized by the police,

(1)  assets being pledged as security against loans which are subsequently lost or stolen, resulting 1n the
borrower being relieved of the liability to the Group

The legal title that the Group can enforce on these 1tems, and their ongoing secunty are therefore vital to the
Group to ensure that the credit risk 1s mitigated to an acceptable level The Group continually reviews and
monttors, at both store and at Board level, 1ts internal centrols to ensure the adequacy of the pledged items
The key aspects of this are

. Appropriate details are kept on all customers the Group transacts with,

. All pawn contracts comply with the Consumer Credit Act 2006,

. Appropriate physical security measures are n place to protect pledged items,

. An internal audit department monitors comphiance with policies at the Group's stores

The Pawnbroking trade receivables are disclosed net of the provision for bad and doubtful debts associated
with these financial assets, mcluding full provision on assets notified to the Group by the police as frozen
assets The movement in the provision 1s as follows

£000

Balance at 1 January 2012 349
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge 390
Written off (291)
Balance at 31 December 2012 448
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge 1,059
Written off (514)
Balance at 31 December 2013 993

The ageing of past due but not impaired receivables 1s as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

0 - 90 days 7,812 8,574
Over 90 days 2,518 3,225
Total 10,330 11,799
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25.

Financial instruments (continued}

Credit nisk_ (continued)

Pawnbroking trade receivables {continued)

The Group has not provided for the £10,330,000 (2012 - £11,799,000) contractually overdue receivables (1 ¢
loans where the pawn agreement has terminated but the customer has not redeemed the assets) at the reporting
date since the realisable value of the collaterals held 1s greater than the carrying value of the pledge loan as
disclosed above The Group does nat start the disposition process of the unredeemed pledges until
three months after the end of the credit agreement since 1t 15 commercial practice to aliow additional tume for
the customers to redeem their pledged items, for an addinonal fee

The maximum exposure to credit risk would be £49,824,000 (2012 - £58,272,000), being the gross carrying
amount net of any amounts offset and any impairment losses

Other trade receivables

This class represents amounts recoverable by the Group through receivables arising from the other financial
services activities 1t engages in, and 1s exposed to credit risk through default on the loan amounts for Pay Day
Advance and KwikLoan, or default from the drawer for Third Party Cheque Encashment On each product the
Group employs appropriate policies to mitigate the credit risk including credit checks, obtaining legal security
provided and appropriate staff recruitment and traning policies The Group monitors the ongoing risk
associated with this class of financial assets through a continual review of bad debts, modifications to the
lending policy, and internal audit acuvities In the event of default by the customer, the Group has also
developed a debt collection department to recover any outstanding debt

Cheque cashing and other financial services receivables are disclosed net of provisions for bad and doubtful
debts, an analysis of which 1s as follows

Other
Cheque Financal
Cashing Services Total
£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2012 660 477 1,137
Net Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge 2,379 367 2,746
Written off (2,329) (460) (2,789)
Balance at 31 December 2012 710 384 1,094
Net Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge (177 1,092 915
Wrilten off (488) (836) (1.324)
Balance at 31 December 2013 45 640 685

The Group has no overdue receivables at the reporting date (2012 none) Trade receivables not overdue are
provided for based on estitnated irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default expenence

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents balance comprises both bank balances and cash floats at the stores The bank
balances are subject to very limited credit risk as they are held with banking institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies The cash floats are subject to nsks similar to any
retailer, namely of theft or loss by employees or third parties These risks are mitigated by the security
systems, policies and procedures that the Group operates at each store, the Group recruitment and training
policies and the mternal audit function
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Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continuted)

The concentration of net bank balances by counterparty financial institution is as follows

Credit 2013 2012
rating £000 £°000
Barclays Bank plc A2 933 3,753
Lloyds TSB Bank plc A2 75 -
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc A3 335 329
Cash at stores - 3,908 2,289

5,251 6,371

Market risk
Pawnbroking trade recewvables

The collateral which protects the Group from credit risk on non-redemption of pawn loans 15 99% (2012 -
99%) comprnised of gold, jewellery items and watches The value of gold items held as security 1s directly
linked to the price of gold The Group 1s therefore exposed to adverse movements 1n the price of gold on the
value of the security that would be attributable for sale in the event of default by the borrower The Group
considers this risk to be limited for a number of reasons First of all, the Group apphies conservative lending
polictes 1n pawnbroking pledges reflected in the blended margin made on retail sales and scrap gold when
contracts forfeit The value of gold for our customers 1s also much greater than the price of gold since
jewellery items contain a retail margin The Group 1s also protected due to the short term value of the pawn
contract (6 months) In the event of a significant drop 1n the price of gold, the Group could mtigate this nsk
by reducing its lending policy on pawnbroking pledges, by increasing the proportion of gold sold through
retail sales or by entering gold hedging instruments Management momitors the gold price on & constant basis
During Q4 2013 the cost of goods sold through the retail channel increased by over 100% as a result of
management actions in response to the lower gold price

Considering areas outside of those financial assets defined under IAS 39, the Group 1s subject to higher
degrees of pricing risk The price of gold will affect future Group profitability 1n three key ways

1) A lower gold price will adversely affect the scrap disposition margins on existing stock, whether
genetated by pledge book forfeits or via the Group’s purchasing operations While scrap profits will be
impacted immediately, retall margins may be less impacted in the short term

1) While the Group’s lending and purchasing rates do not track gold price mevements n the short term,
any sustained fall in the price of gold is likely to cause lending and purchasing rates to fall in the longer
term thus potennially reducing future profitability as

a the size of the pledge book and associated yield 15 directly linked to lending rates, and
b assuming constant disposition margins, absolute disposition profits would decrease as lending
and purchasing rates decrease

m) A lower gold price may reduce the attractiveness of the Group’s gold purchasing operations

Conversely, a lower gold price may dampen competition as lower returns are available and hence this may
assist In sustaining margins
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Financial instruments (continued)

Liguidity risk

Borrowings

The Group has significant borrowings exposing 1t to liquidity risk in both repayment of borrowings and
availability of finance In order to mitigate this risk, the Group uses a mixture of short-term and long-term
debt finance with banking institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies
The current borrowings are disclosed in detail 1n note 22, which shows that the Group has arrangements in
place for funding until 2017 At 31 December 2013, the Group also has available £24,000,000 (2012
£16,000,000) of undrawn committed borrowing facihties in respect of which all conditions precedent had
been met This level of headroom is considered sufficient to finance operations at the current level, and as
described i note 22, the Group currently has a £50m facility which 1s available to draw upon Furthermore,
as shown 1n note 29, the business generates a positive cash flow from operating activities and has discretion i
its expansion programme should the Group need to improve short term cash flow

The Group 15 1n full comphance with all loan covenants

The matunity analysis of the cash flows arising from both current borrowing arrangements that expose the
Group to hquidity risk are as follows

60 days 180
Lessthan 30to60 to 180 daysto 1-2 2-3 3-4

Payments due by period 30 days days days 1year years years years Total
£000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 December 2013

Floating rate borrowings 36 36 i44 216 432 432 23,036 24,332

Trade and other payables 1,092 3,540 - - - - - 4,632

Total 1,128 3,576 144 216 432 432 23,036 28964
60 days 180

Lessthan 30to60 to 180 daysto 1-2 2-3 3-4

Payments due by pertod 30 days days days 1 year years years years Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
At 31 December 2012

Floating rate borrowings 66 67 280 34,073 34,486
Trade and other payables 1,868 2,798 - - - - - 4,666
Total 1,934 2,865 280 34,073 - - - 39,152

The amounts reported above for floating rate borrowings include the principal amount of borrowings as well
as the interest payable on these borrowings The floating rates used to predict the mterest cash flows are based
on the relevant LIBOR vyield curve derived from quoted interest rates The above amounts are contractual,
undiscounted cash flows
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Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

Borrowings

The Group 15 funded based on a combination of equity and bank borrowings The bank borrowings are all held
at floating rates based on LIBOR Accordingly the Group 1s exposed to cash flow nsk through changes m the
LIBOR rate impacting cash flows

Analysis 15 shown below to demonstrate the sensitivity on profitability of a 1% change in LIBOR, subject to
LIBOR being a mmmum of 0% The analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of hability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year A 1 0% increase or decrease 15 used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates

1.0% decrease 1 0% ncrease
n 1nterest rates  in mnterest rates

£°000 £000
At 31 December 2013
Finance costs gain/(loss) 137 (260)
Total pre tax impact on profit from (loss)/gain 137 (260)
Post tax impact on equity (loss)/gain 105 (199)
At 31 December 2012
Finance costs gam/(loss) 168 (340)
Total pre tax impact on profit from (loss)/gain 168 (340)
Post tax impact on equity (loss)/gain 128 (258)

Fmancial Assets

The Group 1s not exposed to significant interest rate risk on the financial assets, other than cash and cash
equivalents, as these are lent at fixed rates, which reflect current market rates for similar types of secured or
unsecured lending, and are held at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents are exposed to interest rate risk as they are held at fleating rates, although the risk
15 not significant as the interest recervable 1s not sigmficant
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26.  Share capital

2013 2012
£000 £'000

Issued and fully paid
36,856,264 (2012 — 36,586,256) ordinary shares of £0 05 each 1,843 1,830

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income

In 2013 270,008 new ordinary £0 05 shares were 1ssued, called up and fully paid Of these new ordmary
shares, 6,193 were 1ssued to satisfy options granted in 2009 exercised at a grant price of £1 94 per share,
resulting 1n an increase 1 share capital of £310 and 1n the share premium account of £11,705 The remaining
263,815 were 1ssued as part of the Group LTIP scheme as noted below, resulting i an mncrease 1n share capital
of £13,1%1 with no change n the share premwum account

In 2012 492,371 new ordinary £0 05 shares were 1ssued, called up and fully paid Of these new ordinary
shares, 3,689 were 1ssued to satisfy options granted m 2006 exercised at a grant price of £1 825 per share,
resulting 1n an increase n share capital of £184 and n the share premium account of £6,548 A further 4,170
were 15sued to satisfy options granted in 2007 exercised at a grant price of £2 175 per share, resulting in an
increase 1n share capital of £209 and n the share premium account of £8,861 A further 16,287 shares were
1ssued to satisfy options granted 1in 2008 exercised at a grant price of £1 755 per share, resulting 1n an mcrease
in share capital of £814 and 1n the share premwum account of £27,769 A further 172,281 shares were 1ssued to
satisfy options granted m 2009 exercised at a grant price of £1 94 per share, resulting 1n an increase in share
capital of £8,614 and 1n the share premium account of £325,611 The remaining 295,944 were 1ssued as part
of the Group LTIP scheme as noted below, resulting in an increase 1n share capital of £14,797 with no change
in the share premium account

Options over shares of the Company are disclosed n note 27 Under these share option arrangements, there
are 1,648,484 (2012 — 1,664,684) open options over shares

Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve

Under the terms of the LTIP for directors, the parent company 1ssued 263,815 ordinary shares of £0 05p to
the Employee Benefit Trust, with consideration paid for through the issuance of a loan to the Trust from the
Group The Group presents these conditional shares as an adjustment to own equity at the balance sheet date
through the Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve, until the pomt that the shares are awarded, and cease to be
conditional awards of shares The award of shares under the LTIP is conditional upon certain vesting criteria,
as outlined 1n note 27

Movements in this reserve are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes i Equity
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Skare capital (continued)
Capital nsk management

The Group manages 1its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concems
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The
capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed n note 22, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves
and retained earnings

Gearng ratio

Although the Group reviews 1is gearing ratio at each reporting date, no specific target has been fixed by
management The Group’s gearing ratio at the year end 15 as follows

2013 2012
Gearing Ratio £000 £000
Debt 29,000 34,000
Cash and cash equivalents (8,251) (6,371}
Net debt 20,749 27,629
Equity 88,128 86,765
Net debt to equity ratio 23 5% 32%

Debt 1s defined as long and short-term borrowings, as detailed 1n note 22, before unamortised 1ssue costs
Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to equity holders of the Company

Externally imposed capital requirement

The Group 1s not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements
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27.

Share based payments

As at 31 December 2013, the Company operated three share award schemes The charge for the year in respect
of all schemes was

2013 2012

£°000 £'000

A Approved Share Option Scheme 91 94
B Unapproved Share Option Scheme 13 63
C Long-term Incentive Plan 134 274
238 431

Awards that can be granted under the three schemes total a maximum of 3,685,626 shares (2012 —
3,658,626 shares)

A. Approved Share Option Scheme (‘ASOS’)

The Approved Share Option Scheme 1s a share option scheme approved by HMRC where favourable tax
treatment 15 received on exercise by the employee The options may be granted to all management from Shop
Manager to Executive Director level The Remuneration Committee of the ultimate parent company, H & T
Group plc, sets the performance conditions

The performance conditions applicable to the options granted in 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have
already been met The performance conditions applicable to grants in subsequent years are as follows

e Options granted m 2011, 2012 and 2013 become exercisable subject to continued employment
within the Group as at the exercise date

Early exercise of the options 1s permitted 1f an option holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, injury,
disability, retirement or sale of is employing company

The options outstanding at the year end were as follows

Exercise price Number Earliest date

Grant date Pence of shares of exercise Expiry date
ASOS 2006 September 2006 1825 26,564 7/09/2009 6/09/2016
ASOS 2007 May 2007 2173 26,940 16/05/2010  15/05/2017
ASOS 2008 May 2008 1755 41,291 15/05/2011  14/05/2018
ASOS 2009 April 2009 194 0 60,404 30/04/2012  29/04/2019
ASOS 2010 Apnl 2010 2455 123,702 19/04/2013  18/04/2020
ASOS 2011 April 2011 2985 144,687 18/04/2014  17/04/2021
AS0S5 2012 March 2012 2970 179,441 29/03/2015  28/03/2022
ASCS 2013 March 2013 292125 211,535 28/03/2016  27/03/2023
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An external valuation firm has calculated the fair value of the options granted during the year in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 2 A Black-Scholes model was used to value the
ASOS awards as they do not contain any market based performance condition The fair value calculated and

assumptions used are as follows

2013 2012
Fair value at measurement date 46 20 pence 49 235 pence
Weighted average share price 292 25 pence 297 0 pence
Weighted average exercise price 292 25 pence 297 0 pence
Expected volatility 27 6% 27%
Expected hife 6 5 years 6 5 years
Risk-free rate 1 068% 12%
Expected dividends 4 1% 37%

The expected volatihity was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the share price of the H & T
Group plc shares as an estimate of future volatility The expected life used in the model for both years has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations

The average remaining contractual hfe 1s 7 3 years

A reconciliation of option movements for the ASOS 15 set out below

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of  exercise Number exercise

share price of share price

options  (1n pence) options  (1n pence)

Qutstanding at beginning of period 732,330 2612 687,941 2363
Granted during the period 254,703 2923 234,130 2970
Forfeited during the period (166,276) 2776 (59,253) 266 1
Exercised during the period (6,193) 1940  (130,488) 192 1
Qutstanding at the end of the penod 814,564 268 1 732,330 2612
Exercisable at the end of the period 278,901 21528 175,179 191 2
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B. Unapproved Share Option Scheme (‘USOS*)

The Unapproved Share Option Scheme 15 a discretionary option scheme under which the Remuneration
Committee of H & T Group plc may grant options to all Executive Directors and Senior Management of the
Company The Remuneration Commuttee of H & T Group ple sets the performance conditions

The performance conditions apphicable to the options granted in 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have
already been met The performance conditions applicable to grants n subsequent years are as follows

e In2011,2012 and 2013 that an option may not be exercisable unless the Total Shareholder Return
(TSR) over 3 years exceeds the FTSE AiM 100 performance

Exercise of an option 1s subject to continued employment over a three year period from the date of the grant

Early exercise of the options 1s permitted 1f an option holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, injury,

disability, retirement or sale of his employing company

The options outstanding at the year end were as follows

Exercise

price

Grant date Pence

USOS 2006 September 2006 1825
USOS 2007 May 2007 2175
USOS 2008 May 2008 1755
USOS 2009 Apnil 2009 194 0
Usos 2010 Apnl 2010 2455
UsOs 2011 Apnl 2011 298 5
USOS 2012 March 2012 2970
USOS 2013 March 2013 292 25

Number
of shares

126,027
112,643
146,424
152,215
226,740
31,682
11,260
26,929

Earlitest date
of exercise

7/09/2009
16/05/2010
15/05/2011
30/04/2012
19/04/2013
18/04/2014
29/03/2015
28/03/2016

Expiry date

6/09/2016
15/05/2017
14/05/2018
29/04/2019
18/04/2020
17/04/2021
28/03/2022
27/03/2023

An external valuation firm has undertaken fair value calculations of the options granted during the year using a
Black-Scholes model, with the results and key assumptions as follows

Fair value at measurement date
Weighted average share price
Weighted average exercise price
Expected volatihty

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividends

2013
46 20 pence

252 25 pence

292 25pence
27 6%

6 5 years

1 068%

4 1%

2012

42 0 pence
297 0 pence
297 0 pence

27%
6 5 years
1 2%
37%
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Share based payments (continued)

The expected volaulity was determined by calculating the historical volattlity of the share price of the H& T
Group plc shares as an estimate of future volatiity The expected life used 1n the model for both years has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions, and behavioural considerations

The average remamning contractual life 1s 5 years

A reconcthiation of option movements for the USOS is set out below

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Number exercise

share price of share price

options  {In pence) options  {(in pence)

Outstanding at beginning of period 932,354 2185 985,671 2155
Granted during the period 36,119 2923 18,177 2970
Forfeited during the period (134,553) 2620 (5,555) 2306
Exercised during the period - - (65,939) 194 0
Outstanding at the end of the period 833,920 2147 932,354 2185
Exercisable at the end of the period 764,049 2073 537,309 1912

C Long-term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)

The LTIP is a discretionary share incentive scheme under which the Remuneration Committee of
H & T Group plc can grant ordmnary shares at no cost to executive directors and other senior management

The LTIP operates as conditional shares awarded over a defined year performance period and subject to
continued employment over a three year period from the date of the grant Early exercise of the conditional
shares 15 permitted 1f a share award holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, injury, disability,
retirement or sale of his employmg company

The performance condition apphicable to the 2011 and 2012 grants are as follows

e That the award may not be exercisable unless the TSR of H&T Group plc over the performance
period exceeds the TSR of the FTSE A1M 100 index

e For the 2011 grant, this 1s measured over three separate performance periods One third of the
award vests 1f the condition 15 met n the 2011 calendar year A further third vests 1if the condition
1s met m the 2012 calendar year and the final third vests 1f the condition 15 satisfied in the 2013
calendar year

e For the 2012 grant, the performance period 1s from | January 2012 to 31 December 2014

The performance condition applicable to the 2013 grant 1s as follows
e The performance period 1s from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015
e  The award cannot be exercised unless the percentage growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax
over the performance period 1s greatet than 22 35% (“the Lower Limit™)
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e Ifthe percentage growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax over the Performance Period 1s equal to
or greater than 52% (“the Upper Target”), the Award may be exercised as to 100% of the Shares

subject to the Award

e If the growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax 1s between the Lower Limit and the Upper Target
then the Award may only be exercised over such percentage between 0% and 100% of the Shares
subject to the Award (rounded down to the nearest whole number of Shares) as relates to the

amount by which, on a straight line basis, the Lower Target has been exceeded

The conditional shares outstanding at the year end were as follows

Number of

Grant date shares

LTIP 2011 Mar 2011 167,848
LTI 2012 Apr 2012 190,497
LTIP 2013 Mar 2013 198,513

Earhest date
of exercise

01/04/2014
17/04/2015
28/03/2016

The conditional shares granted during the year were valued by an external valuation firm using a Black-

Scholes model The fair value result and key assumptions used 1n 2013 valuation are as follows

Fair value at measurement date

Weighted average share price

Weighted average exercise price 0 pence
Expected volatihty

Expected life 3 0 years
Risk free rate 08595 %

292 2 pence
292 25 pence

2012

171 7 pence
292 0 pence
0 pence
30%

3 0 years

0 6%

The expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the share price of the H&T
Group plc as an indicator of the future volatity Correlation between the Group and the comparator index
was not included within the modeiling of farr value calculations since the observed correlation was not

significant and would therefore have negligible impact on the final fair value

The average remaimning contractual hife 15 1 3 years for those awards where performance conditions have not

yet been satisfied

A reconciliation of conditional share movements for the LTIP 1s set out below

2013

Weighted
average Number

Number of exercise
conditional price conditional

shares  (in pence)

Outstanding at beginning of period 505,658 - 488,099
263,815 - 272,206

Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period (212,615) -
Exercised during the period -

(254,647)

2012
Weighted
average
exercise
price

{in pence)

Qutstanding at the end of the period 556,858

505,658
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28.  Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense 1n the year

2013 2012
£°000 £'000
7,004 7,027

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

Land and buildings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 6,296 6,768 138 88
In the second to fifth years inclusive 16,545 16,850 154 114
After five years 13,564 14,297 - -
36,405 37,915 292 202

Significant operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for rental of store premises
Leases are normally negotiated for an average term of 10 years at the then prevailing market rate, with a break

option after 5 years

The Group also sublets some of the premuses above the stores, the outstanding receipts from which are

immaterial
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29.  Notes to the cash flow statement

Profit for the financ:al year

Adjustments for
Investment revenues
Finance costs
Movement 1n fair value of interest rate swap
Movement 1n provisions
Tax expense — Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment
Share-based payment expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Decrease / (increase) 1n inventories
Decrease / (increase) in recervables
Decrease in payables
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Debt restructuring cost

Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2013 2012
£000 £000
4,851 12,896

m (@)
842 1,532

- (418)

640 (36)
1,882 4,077
3,185 2,952
419 266
517 -
238 416
187 89

12,760 21,772
(3,359) 3,206

10,970 (4,628)

(731) (1,914)

19,640 18,436

(3,009) (5,462)
(535) -
(691) (1,534)

15,405 11,440

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet)
comprise cash at bank and other short-term hughly hquid investments with a maturity of three months or less

87



H&T Group ple

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

30.

3l

32

Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed 1n this note

Transactions with directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Report and note 9 There were no other material
related party transactions during the year
Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors of Harvey & Thompson Limited, the trading subsichary, who are the key
management personnel of the Group, 15 set out below 1n aggregate for each of the categornies specified 1n TAS
24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2013 2012

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 968 1,301
Pension contributions 71 77
Share-based payments 123 291
1,162 1,669

Capital commitments

There 15 no significant capital expenditure authorised and contracted for but not provided 1n the accounts
(2012 - £m1l)

Events after the balance sheet date

The directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2 7p (note 14)
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
H & T Group ple

We have audited the company financial statements of H & T Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 which
comprnise the Company Balance Sheet, the Company combined reconciliation of movements n shareholders® funds
and statement of movement on reserves and the related notes A to F The financial reporting framework that has been
applied n their preparation 15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compamies Act 2006  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihity to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Dhrectors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invelves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to 1dentify material incensistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently materially mcorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit  1f we become aware
of any apparent material misstaternents or inconsistencies we consider the impltcations for our report

Opmon on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

. have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opmion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you 1if, n our opimion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retumns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of H & T Group plc for the year ended 31 December
2013
law ¥ Suuln
lan J Smith (Senitor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Crawley, United Kingdom

26 February, 2014
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H&T Group plc

Company balance sheet
At 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments C 1,129 891
1,129 891
Current assets
Debtors D 61,589 41,589
Cash at bank and 1n hand 46 44
61,635 41,633
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year E (14,366} (10,476)
Net current assets 47,269 31,157
Total assets less current habilities 48,398 32,048
Net assets 48,368 32,048
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital F 1,843 1,830
Share premium account 25,409 25,397
Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve (38) (25)
Share option reserve 1,129 891
Profit and loss account 20,055 3,955
Total shareholders’ funds 48,398 32,048

The financial statements of H & T Group plc, registered number 05188117, were approved by the board of directors
and authonsed for 1ssue on 26 February, 2014
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H&T Group plc

Company combined reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds and
statement of movements on reserves
Year ended 31 December 2013

2013

Company
Note

At 1 January

Profit for the financial

year

Dividend paid

Issue of share capital F
Employee Benefit Trust

shares

Share option credit taken
directly to equuty

At 31 December

2012

Company
Note

At 1 January

(Loss) for the financial

year

Dividend paid

Issue of share capztal F
Employee Benefit Trust

shares

Share option credit taken
directly to equity

At 31 December

Employee
benefit
Share trust Share Profit
Share premium shares option  and loss 2013
capital account reserve reserves  account Total
£000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000
1,830 25397 (25) 891 3,955 32,048
19,838 19,838
(3,738) (3,738)
13 12 25
(13) (13)
238 238
1,843 25,409 (38) 1,129 20,055 48,398
Employee
benefit
Share trust Share Profit
Share premium shares option  and loss 2012
capital account reserve reserves  account Total
£7000 £°000 £000 £°000 £000 £000
1,803 24,961 (25) 475 8,094 35,310
- - - - (198) (168)
- - - - (3,941) (3,941)
25 436 - - - 461
- - - 416 - 416
1,830 25,397 (25) 891 3,955 32,048




H&T Group ple

Notes to the company financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

A.

Accounting pohcies

Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards They have all been applied consistentiy throughout the current and preceding financial year

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as discussed in the Directors’ Report

The particular accounting policies adopted are described below

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention

Taxation

Current UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Where tax losses are
surrendered to, or received from, group companies, the amount received/surrendered 1s charged/credited to
the profit and loss account and treated as payable to/receivable from the related group party that has
surrendered/recerved the losses

Deferred tax 15 recogmsed n respect of all iming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a
right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences
between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the
inclusion of gains and losses 1n tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recogmised
in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the
basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more fikely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underiying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply i the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

Investments

Fixed assets investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Financial habilities and equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered nto An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asseis
of the Company after deducting all of its hiabilities

Equity instruments 1ssued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs
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H&T Group ple -

Notes to the company financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

A,

Accounting policies {continued)

Dividends

Dividends recetvable from subsidiary undertakings are recorded in the profit and loss account on the date that
the dividend becomes a binding liability on the subsidiary company Under the terms of FRS 6 ‘Acquisitions
and mergers’, the Company records dividends arising from pre-acquisition profit and loss reserves of 1ts
subsidiary undertaking in the profit and loss account and considers whether the distnibution affects the
carrying value of the mnvestment 1n the subsidiary undertaking

Dividends payable are recorded as a distribution from retamed earnings in the period in which they become a
binding hability on the Company

Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contamed in FRS 8, ‘Related Party Disclosures’,
available to parent Company’s presenting single company financial statements together with the consolidated
Group financial statements of the Group headed by the Company, not to disclose transactions with entities
that are part of the group headed by H & T Group plc or mnvestees of the group quahfying as related parties

There are no other related party transactions of the Company that require disctosure

Cash flow statement

The Company 1s the parent company in the H & T Group plc group, which prepares consohidated financial
statements, including a cash flow statement, which are publicly available Consequently, under the terms of
FRS 1, ‘Cash Flow Statements’, the Company has not prepared a cash flow statement

Share options

The Company’s trading subsidiary, Harvey & Thompson Limuted 1ssues share options to employees 1n that
Company, which are equity settled in shares of H & T Group plc Harvey & Thompson Limited determines
the fair value of the options granted measured at the date of grant by use of a Black-Scholes model or a
Stochastic medel depending on the vesting conditions attached to each scheme This fair value cost of equity-
settled awards 1s recogmsed on a straighi-ine basis over the vesting period m the financial statements of
Harvey & Thompson Limited, based on the estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of any non market-based vesting conditions

The Company receives a payment each period, equal to the annual expense recorded in Harvey & Thompson
Limited calculated on the basis described above This amount 15 ¢redited to the profit and loss account each
period and 1s treated in a similar manner to a distribution of dividends from Group companies

Company profit and loss account

No profit and loss account 15 presented for the parent company pursuant to section 408 of Companies Act
2006

The Company made a profit after taxation of £ 19,838,000 in 2013 (2012 - £198,000 loss) The key
movement, year on year, relates to dividend income of £20,000,000 received from H&T Finance Lid

The auditors’ remuneration for the current and preceding financial years 1s borne by a subsidiary undertaking,
Harvey & Thompson Limited Note 8 to the Group financial statements discloses the amount pard in respect
of the Company

The directors did not receive any emoluments for their services to the company (2012 - £ml) Other than the
directors, the Company has no employees n either financial year
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H&T Group plc

Notes to the company financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

C. Investments
Shares in subsidiary undertakings
Cost
At ] January 2013
Additions

At 31 December 2013

Within the cost at | January 2013 ncludes cost of shares m subsidiary undertakings of £1

Additions relates to the share options given to subsidiary employees 1n 2013

Total
£°000

891
238

1,129

The investments m Group compantes which are all included 1n the consolidated financial statemments are as

follows
Country of Proportion of ordimnary
Name of company meorporation shares held :
Directly  Indirectly
H & T Fmance Limited Great Britam 100% -
Harvey & Thompson Limited  Great Britain - 100%

The Company owns directly or indirectly 100% of the voting rights in all subsidiary undertakings

D. Debtors

Amounts owed by subsidiary companies
Prepayments and accrued income

E. Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidiary companies

Accruals and deferred income

F. Share capital

Principal
Activity

Management of finance

Pawnbroking, jewellery
sales, gold purchasing,
unsecured lending, cheque

cashing and related

SErvices

2013 2012
£000 £000
61,565 41,565
24 24
61,589 41,589
2013 2012
£000 £'000
14,212 10,388
154 88
14,366 10,476

Please refer to the Group financial statements of H & T Group plc for details of share caprtai including shares

1ssued 1n the year (note 26), and dividends paid and proposed (notes 14 and 32)
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